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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Lotus Horizon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “"Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year” or
"FY2023").

During the FY2023, especially in the first three quarters of the Year,
the Company faced challenges steamed from the fifth wave of the
COVID-19 pandemic and stringent anti-epidemic precautionary
measures imposed. High building materials prices, difficulties in cross-
border logistics, delay in construction progress of several on-going
projects, etc., kept burdened the Group's project costs and slowed
down the Group's gross profit margin recovery.

In order to mitigate the adverse impacts resulted from COVID-19
pandemic, the Company continued to place strong emphasis on
projects’” work quality, safety and cost control enhancement. Although
the Group reported a net loss of approximately HK$8.1 million for the
Year, its performance and gross profit margin have been improved
as compared to that of the year ended 31 March 2022. With the
anti-epidemic precautionary measures and restrictions being lifted
by the Hong Kong government in December 2022, as well as the
normalisation of cross-border transport between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong, the Group is with room for better cost control and
thus further improvement on gross profit margin in the coming years.

A series of policy measures, such as the expediting development of
the Northern Metropolis, making available sufficient land for private
housing development in next five years, taking forward three strategic
railway projects, etc., was mentioned in the Chief Executive’s 2022
Policy Address of the Hong Kong government. Those development
plans will continue to support the momentum of the local market of
facade works and building metal finishing works. When the demand of
the market is secured, we are optimistic that the Group can maintain its
competitive strengths under various challenges.
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to
our shareholders, business partners and customers, as well as our
management and staff for their utmost support.

Chu Kwok Fun
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a subcontractor engaged in the provision of design, supply,
and installation services for facade works and building metal finishing
works in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 12 projects in progress with a total
original contract sum of approximately HK$765.9 million. Total revenue
of approximately HK$190.6 million was recognised during the FY2023.

During the Year, the Group has been awarded 9 new projects with a
total contract sum of approximately HK$252.7 million, which comprise
6 projects for fagcade works and 3 projects for building metal finishing
works. As at 31 March 2023, the outstanding value of our projects
on hand was approximately HK$440.1 million, as compared to
approximately HK$355.4 million as at 31 March 2022.

The profit margins of our ongoing projects, which were awarded in
prior years, remained under pressure. The overall building materials
prices and logistics costs retained at a relatively high level during the
reporting period.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Looking forward, in view of a series of policy measures mentioned
in the Chief Executive's 2022 Policy Address of the Hong Kong
government, we believe the local construction market is full of
opportunities. However, in view of the global economic uncertainties,
the local property developers and owners are expected to continue
their stringent control on project budgets. We will keep taking a
prudent approach on bidding new projects and strive for obtaining
new projects with reasonable profit margins.

It is expected that the Group’s gross profit margin will recover
gradually when those new projects get started upcoming. Cost control
measures will be kept in place in order to reduce the potential impact
of global economic uncertainties and closely monitor the trends of the
global and local market. The Group will continue to maintain sufficient
financial resources to tackle potential changes of the market and to
capture any new opportunities.

R
BMEREEREREIMETIRRRES B
B TRRE - AR ZRBEH D B -

RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H0 AEEF12{8#
ITHHIBE @ RAENBENATIGSIEEETT
RZZ-=FHRFE - BHEREUEL190.6
BEBIT -

FR o AEBEMOEHNER  AHBAEYD
2527 EBEEL  HReEEIMNELIREE &
JEEECEMEIREE R -_ZF=
A=+—8 BMFEBEENARATKEEN R
AONBEBATL HER-_E-__F=fF=+—
B AIA4355.4B 88T °

BARNEEFERR RIEETH 2BBHFE
RMAERE S - RMEHE - BREVER
BADRAR A B =K

RERAIR

RERK  ENBFEBNTBREE_Z_-__F
HEER R & R RS 0 — R P BE S i - HFIEE
A REMIBITREE - AW - ER2REH
TR - TRET AR ERE R ETEIFER
RIEHIEEEE - HAKEEFEHRERE
B BHEGEEAEMNBRNFIEE -

TAFHEEZSNEBEERT - ARENER
WGEFETT o AIE B BRIFRIGL - A
BMAORHEBETEEENBELE  YEH
TERMAMTIZHEE - AREGEEER
TE R BB 5 B R DA RE BT 5 B A L AR
TS -

BHERERERRR / —E_ZFFR

\§\ %



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The table below sets forth an analysis of our revenue by the types of
services provided for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022:

Bt % B B8

&
TREINBEEZFT_=FR_T-__F=-H
=T —HIEFERZMEHRREER S S U
DT

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-_F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FEx % FHT %
Facade works HNETHE 162,650 85.3 194,218 86.7
Building metal finishing works RSB IR 27,971 14.7 29,773 13.3
Total wEt 190,621 100.0 223,991 100.0

The Group's revenue decreased by approximately HK$33.4 million
or 14.9% from approximately HK$224.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2022 (the “Previous Year” or "FY2022") to approximately
HK$190.6 million for the Year. The decline in revenue recognised was
primarily attributed to the delayed construction programmes of two key
facade projects during the Year and certain projects, which contributed
significant amounts of revenue in the Previous Year, completed during
the Year.

The table below sets forth an analysis of our revenue by sectors for the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022:
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Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+—HLEFE

2023 2022
—EBC=HF =S

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

FTHET % THETT %

Residential properties FEWE 96,455 50.6 136,376 60.9
Commercial properties [BE3ZES 6,464 3.4 9,561 4.3
Public facilities NHFE 87,702 46.0 78,054 34.8
Total HET 190,621 100.0 223,991 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The table below sets forth an analysis of the amount of gross profit
and the gross profit margin by types of services for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022:

B[O BE ()

EFNRENR

TR EEZE_E_=FR T -__F=H
T HIEFERREENE NENSENR

EFIEDH -

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2023 2022

—EBC-=F - —F
Gross profit Gross profit
margin margin
HK$'000 (%) HK$'000 (%)
ER=E ERE
FHET (%) FHET (%)
Facade works SIS TH2 9,017 5.5 1,860 1.0
Building metal finishing works R EAE T 3,802 13.6 613 2.1
Total 1a@st 12,819 6.7 2,473 1.1

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately HK$10.3 million
from approximately HK$2.5 million for the FY2022 to approximately
HK$12.8 million for the FY2023. The gross profit margin increased
from approximately 1.1% for the FY2022 to approximately 6.7% for
the FY2023. The significant increase of gross profit margin was mainly
resulted from the reduction in additional project overhead costs,
subcontracting costs and other costs incurred for acceleration of
installation progress and defects fixing due to the delay in construction
progress and persistent adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic;
while such positive effect was partially offset by the impact of relatively
high building materials prices and logistics cost sustained during the
Year.

NEEBMENB -_ZE - - FEHREENL258
ERTENNI03EEBTE S - =ZFH K
FEMN28EEBT - EFIXA-T-_—F
BRFEENII% EAZE S - ZFHHRFE
BH16.7% - BEFEAR EAEEHNERETE
EEBAMCOVID-19RRITHIFETFI 28
BEEINEEEEER - 2 BENRAREAM A
REFHEENSEREMEEANERRD  1fE
HIAZEd A FENSERHEMERR
VIR AN SL 2 FT O ©

BHERERERRR / —E_ZFFR



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin (Continued)

The table below sets forth an analysis of the amount of gross profit and
the gross profit margin by sectors for the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022:

B # B B ()

EMNRERNEE)
TREINBEEZFT_=FR_T-__F=-H
=+ BUHFERFRES>NEFN B REF
RO

Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HLEE

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-_4F

Gross profit Gross profit

margin margin

HK$'000 (%) HK$'000 (%)

EFIZE ESTIES

FHET (%) FAIT (%)
Residential properties FEWE 5,430 5.6 (3,715) (2.7)
Commercial properties [GEX/ES 713 11.0 (192) (2.0)
Public facilities NHZE 6,676 7.6 6,380 8.2
Total Bt 12,819 6.7 2,473 1.1

Other income, gains and losses, net

During the FY2023, we recognised other income, gains and losses,
net of approximately HK$1.6 million, as compared with other income
of approximately HK$508,000 recognised during the FY2022, which
was primarily arisen from a one-off lump sum government subsidy of
approximately HK$1.2 million under the Employment Support Scheme.

Net impairment losses reversed (recognised) under
expected credit loss model

The amounts represent impairment losses, net of reversal, made on
trade receivables and contract assets. The net impairment losses
reversed of approximately HK$627,000 in the FY2023 was resulted from
the reversal of non-credit-impaired lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables and contract assets of approximately HK$317,000 and
HK$310,000 respectively.

In the Previous Year, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
approximately HK$6.7 million in respect of the entire balance of trade
receivables and retention receivables due from a customer, net of
the reversal of non-credit-impaired lifetime expected credit losses of
approximately HK$163,000, leaded to the net impairment losses of
approximately HK$6.5 million.

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MEEJEH—J-HH& *ﬁ'

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Operating and administrative expenses

Operating and administrative expenses include staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation, marketing and promotion expenses, travelling, office
and utility expenses, legal and professional fees and other expenses.
For the FY2023, the Group's operating and administrative expenses
were approximately HK$21.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$0.6 million or 2.4% from approximately HK$22.4
million for the FY2022. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in staff costs recognised as operating and administrative
expenses of approximately HK$412,000 and the decrease in
depreciation on property and equipment of approximately HK$110,000
during the FY2023.

Finance costs

Finance costs comprise interests on bank borrowings and interests
on lease liabilities. The former refers to the interest cost incurred for
borrowings raised from banks while the latter refers to interest portion
included in the lease payments under the leases of renting office
premises and office equipment for operating uses. For the FY2023,
the finance costs were approximately HK$1.3 million, increased by
approximately HK$0.6 million from approximately HK$0.7 million
for the FY2022. The increase in finance costs was mainly due to the
increase in interests on bank borrowings by approximately HK$673,000.

Income tax credit

The Group's income tax credit for the FY2023 comprises deferred
tax credit of approximately HK$7,000 (FY2022: over-provision of
Hong Kong profits tax in prior year of approximately HK$42,000 and
deferred tax credit of approximately HK$3.9 million). The deferred tax
credit in the FY2022 was mainly attributed to the deferred tax asset
of approximately HK$3.8 million recognised for the unused tax loss
carried forward. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the tax losses of approximately HK$7.0 million in the FY2023 due to
the unpredictability of future profits streams.

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year

The Group's net loss reduced from approximately HK$22.7 million
for the Previous Year to approximately HK$8.1 million for the Year,
mainly resulted from the increase in gross profit and decrease in net
impairment losses recognised as explained above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$110.6 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$118.0 million).
The current ratio of the Group calculated based on the Group's total
current assets divided by total current liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period was approximately 3.5 times as at 31 March 2023 (31
March 2022: approximately 4.0 times).

The Group finances its operations primarily through a combination
of cash flows generated from operations and bank borrowings. The
decrease of current ratio was primarily attributable to the net loss for
the Year.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$56.3 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$46.1
million).

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2023, the maximum limit of the banking facilities
available to the Group amounted to approximately HK$115.0 million,
out of which an aggregate amount of approximately HK$46.6 million
was utilised for bank borrowings and performance guarantees.

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated based on the Group’s
total bank borrowings divided by total equity and multiplied by
100%, was approximately 23.5% as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022:
approximately 16.1%).

The Group has adopted a prudent approach in financial resources
management. In the management of the liquidity, the Group continues
to monitor and maintain adequate cash and cash equivalents as well as
banking facilities to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The increase of gearing ratio was
primarily due to the increase in bank borrowings during the Year and
decrease in total equity resulted from net loss for the Year.

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE D

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Capital structure

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to the
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company
throughout the Year.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2023, the pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$3.0 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$10.8 million) have
been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group given
by a bank (31 March 2022: to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group and surety bonds of an aggregate balance of approximately
HK$7.1 million given by banks).

As at 31 March 2023, the lease liabilities of approximately HK$5.1
million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$7.2 million) are secured by
rental deposits with carrying values of approximately HK$0.7 million (31
March 2022: approximately HK$0.7 million).

Foreign exchange exposures

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to certain procurement of raw material with Renminbi. Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
group entities’ functional currency. The Group however considers that
the currency risk of those monetary liabilities is not significant and did
not engage in any derivatives agreements and did not commit to any
financial instrument to hedge its foreign exchange exposure during the
Year. The management of the Group will monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Capital expenditure

Our principal capital expenditures relate primarily to investments in
property and equipment excluding right-of-use assets. During the Year,
the Group incurred capital expenditure of approximately HK$69,000
(FY2022: approximately HK$102,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

The detailed information of performance guarantees of the Group as
at 31 March 2023 is set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, there is no other capital commitment and contingent
liabilities that the Group is aware of.

Significant investments, acquisition and disposals

There were no significant investments held, acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by our Group during the
reporting period.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, the Group did not
have other plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31
March 2023.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 54 (31 March 2022: 54) full time
employees (including two executive Directors but excluding three
independent non-executive Directors). The Group has implemented
a tight cost control and adjusts the number of project staff based on
the progress and expected workload of our construction works and the
expected completion dates of work projects. The numbers of project
staff and administrative staff were relatively stable as at 31 March 2023
and 2022.

The remuneration package offered to employees includes salary
and other employee benefits such as bonus. In general, the Group
determines the salaries of its employees based on their individual
performance, qualifications, experiences and position held. The Group
conducts annual salary and promotion review in order to attract and
retain employees. In addition, the Group provides and organises
various types of training to its employees to elevate overall efficiency,
employee loyalty and morale. Total staff costs for the FY2023 were
approximately HK$31.4 million (FY2022: approximately HK$34.7

million).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, the Board is not
aware of any significant events, which have material effect on the
Group, occurred after 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this report.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSRNEEEBREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Kwok Fun

Mr. Chu Kwok Fun, aged 52, is our executive Director, Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, and one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Chu
has been the sole shareholder and the sole director of ICGL Technical
Works (HK) Limited (“ICGL (Hong Kong)") since its incorporation on 4
May 2007. Mr. Chu was appointed as a Director on 14 November 2018
and was redesignated as an executive Director on 19 September 2019.
Mr. Chu is primarily responsible for the overall management, strategic
planning, and development of our business operations. Mr. Chu is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chu has over 25 years of work experience in construction project

management.

Mr. Chu graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (presently known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with the higher diploma in
structural engineering in October 1992.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Wan

Mr. Tsang Chiu Wan, aged 64, is our executive Director. Mr. Tsang
joined us as a general manager of ICGL (Hong Kong) in February 2011,
He was appointed as a Director on 24 May 2019 and was redesignated
as an executive Director on 19 September 2019. Mr. Tsang is primarily
responsible for supervising, managing, and overseeing the day-to-day
operation and administration of our business operations. Mr. Tsang is a
member of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Tsang has more than 29 years of experience in business
management.

Mr. Tsang graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’'s degree of social sciences in November 1981.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEBREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Leung Yin Fai

Ms. Leung Yin Fai, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 March 2020. Ms. Leung is the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Ms. Leung has over 28 years of experience in accounting and corporate
services.

Ms. Leung has been a director of K E Corporate Services Limited (a
company secretarial services provider) since April 2016, the managing
director of K E Management & Consultancy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. since
August 2015. Ms. Leung was an independent non-executive director of
Green Leader Holdings Group Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 0061)
from April 2014 to January 2020 and was a director of KCS Hong Kong
Limited from August 2008 to October 2014.

Ms. Leung has been an associate member of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (presently known as The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") since September 1990, a fellow
member of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
(presently known as The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants) in the United Kingdom and CPA Australia since July 1995
and May 2004, respectively. Ms. Leung obtained a master's degree of
commerce in international professional accounting from The University
of New South Wales, in November 2002.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSRNEEEBREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Ma Tsz Chun

Mr. Ma Tsz Chun, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 March 2020. Mr. Ma is the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of both the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Ma has over 35 years of experience in accounting and finance
matters.

Mr. Ma is an independent non-executive director of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (stock code: 127). He was an independent non-
executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8446) from 19 May 2017 to 11 May 2022.

Mr. Ma graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (presently known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a professional diploma
in accountancy in November 1987. Mr. Ma then obtained a master’s
degree of business administration and a master’s degree of science
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1997 and
December 2003, respectively. In October 2009, Mr. Ma obtained a
master’s degree of science in China business studies from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Ma has been an associate member and a certified public
accountant (practising) of Hong Kong Society of Accountants (presently
known as the HKICPA) since September 1990 and October 2000,
respectively. Mr. Ma has been an associate member in October 1990
and subsequently a fellow member of The Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (presently known as The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants) since November 1995.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEBREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Ms. Yuen Wai Yee

Ms. Yuen Wai Yee, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 March 2020. Ms. Yuen is a member of both the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Yuen has over 25 years of work experience in corporate finance,
accounting, and company secretarial matters.

Ms. Yuen graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’'s degree of arts in accountancy (honours) in November 2004.
Ms. Yuen then obtained a master's degree of business administration
from Heriot-Watt University, a university based in Edinburgh, Scotland,
the United Kingdom in November 2010. Ms. Yuen has been a member
and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since November 2003 and November 2008, respectively,
and a certified public accountant of HKICPA since April 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mo Wan Fai

Mr. Mo Wan Fai, aged 60, joined us as a senior manager of ICGL
(Hong Kong) on 22 September 2011 and was promoted as a senior
manager (tender and procurement) of ICGL (Hong Kong) on 1 January
2019. Mr. Mo is responsible for tendering, managing contracts with
subcontractors and project budgeting.

Mr. Mo has over 40 years of work experience in project planning,
project estimation and management in construction industry.

Mr. Mo graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (presently known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate in
building studies in November 1990. Mr. Mo also obtained a bachelor’s
degree of applied science, construction management and economics
from Curtin University of Technology in February 2004.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EELeREEEBERHE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Phua Chau Yuen

Mr. Phua Chau Yuen, aged 39, joined us as a project manager of ICGL
(Hong Kong) on 1 November 2012 and was promoted as a senior
project manager of ICGL (Hong Kong) on 1 January 2019. Mr. Phua
was further promoted as the assistant general manager of ICGL (Hong
Kong) on 1 January 2022. He is responsible for the overall coordination
and management of assigned projects, including project design, site
supervision, and completion for our facade works projects.

Mr. Phua has over 17 years of work experience in construction projects
management.

Mr. Phua graduated from City University of Hong Kong with an
associate’s degree of science in construction engineering and
management and a bachelor’s degree of engineering (honours) in
building engineering (structural and geotechnical engineering) in
November 2005 and February 2010, respectively.

Ms. Siu Lai Kwan Candy

Ms. Siu Lai Kwan Candy, aged 64, has been appointed as the head
of human resources department of ICGL (Hong Kong) since October
2018. Ms. Siu is responsible for overseeing the human resources
matters of the Group.

Ms. Siu has over 21 years of supervisory work experience in office
administration and human resources matters, specialise in the fields of
property development, construction and architecture.

Ms. Siu graduated from formal secretarial training institute after
secondary education. She obtained a diploma in people management
from Hong Kong Productivity Council and a bachelor’s degree of
property and facility management from International City University of
America in April 2002 and December 2004 respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEBREFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Lee Pui Ling

Ms. Lee Pui Ling, aged 58, has been appointed as the head of
purchasing department of ICGL (Hong Kong) since 27 June 2011.
Ms. Lee is responsible for the co-ordination of purchasing orders of
building materials, maintaining business relationship with suppliers and
overseeing the operations of the purchasing department.

Ms. Lee has over 36 years of work experience in purchasing and
logistics management. She has worked as a purchaser in the
international procurement operation division of LG Electronics HK
Limited for more than 12 years, responsible for handling global
purchasing orders for its headquarters and coordinate logistics of
those orders.

Ms. Lee obtained a diploma in logistics management from Hong Kong
College of Technology in August 2010.

Mr. Yeung Kin Wa
Mr. Yeung Kin Wa, aged 38, joined us as a consultant in July 2020 and
was appointed as the chief financial officer, the company secretary
and an authorised representative of the Company on 23 December
2020. Mr. Yeung is responsible for overseeing financial and compliance
matters of our Group.

Mr. Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since March 2013 and has more than 14 years
of experience in auditing and accounting. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in October 2008. From August 2011
to December 2012, Mr. Yeung has been a senior accountant in the
assurance department of Ernst & Young and has been an accountant in
the corporate team of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0025) from March 2013 to September 2015. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yeung worked as the financial controller of Lake Chong
Fa Catering Group Limited, a group operating restaurants serving
Chinese cuisines in Macau.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yeung Kin Wa was appointed as the company secretary of our
Company on 23 December 2020. He is mainly responsible for financial
management, corporate governance and overall corporate secretarial
matters of our Group. Details of his qualifications and experience are
set out in the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHE

The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year (the
“Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group's principal activities during the Year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Details of segment reporting are set out in Note 5 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and outlook of the Group for the Year are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 14 of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries during the Year are set out in
Note 35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
96 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2022: Nil).
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Directors’ Report

EEGHRE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company's forthcoming annual general meeting (the
"AGM") will be held on Thursday, 17 August 2023. A notice
convening the AGM will be published in the Company’s website of
www.lotushorizonholdings.com and despatched to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) in the manner as required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in due

course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
14 August 2023 to Thursday, 17 August 2023 (both days inclusive)
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company (the
"Shares”) will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, unregistered holders of Shares shall ensure that all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 11 August 2023.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's operation is subject to social, political, economic, and
market risks, which may affect the competition and profitability of
projects in facade works and building metal finishing works industry.
Furthermore, the projects undertaken by the Group are awarded on a
project-by-project basis through tendering; failure to obtain continuity
of the order book for new projects could adversely affect the Group's
financial performance. Revenue from a few of the Group's customers
accounted for a substantial portion of the Group's revenue; inability
to retain business relation with and/or secure sufficient new business
from them may materially affect the Group's operation and financial
performance.
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Directors’ Report
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 184 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 March 2023 was
2,000,000,000 ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 per Share.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 24 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debenture during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 98
of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

Please refer to Note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
details of the Company'’s distributable reserve as at 31 March 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. CHU Kwok Fun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSANG Chiu Wan

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. LEUNG Yin Fai

Mr. MA Tsz Chun

Ms. YUEN Wai Yee
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a contract for
appointment with the Company for a term of three years, renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing
from the day next after the expiry of the then current term of the
appointment, unless terminated by notice in writing served by either
party on the other in accordance with the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment contract with the Company for a period of three years
and is subject to termination provisions therein.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, including those to be
re-elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the
Listing Rules. The Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than the appointment contracts and employment
contracts, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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Directors’ Report

EEGHRE

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES

Interests and short positions of Directors and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or (ii) to be entered into the register required to be kept
therein, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the model code for
securities transactions by Directors of the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Number of

Shares held/ Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest interested  shareholding
Es e 2]

EEpnE 510 REnitE EEROEE FRESL

Mr. Chu Kwok Fun Interest in controlled corporation (Note) 1,500,000,000 75.0%
REVE A RiEEE R () (Long position)

(HFR)

Note: These Shares are registered in the name of Platinum Lotus Holdings Limited, which
is legally, beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. Chu. Under the SFO, Mr. Chu is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Platinum Lotus Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company has any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and/or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) to be entered
into the register required to be kept therein, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the model code for securities transactions by Directors.

BRE - %5 %19 BAPlatinum Lotus Holdings Limited )4 &
EEC + MPlatinum Lotus Holdings Limited F1 2R %t 4
BEMEER2ERE - REBSFRPEER - KL
A B AR BTAPlatinum Lotus Holdings Limited 3% 8 /)
FRBR R -
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EEGHRE

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES (Continued)

Interests and short positions of the substantial shareholders
and other persons in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
As at 31 March 2023, so far as it is known to the Directors, the following
entities (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
or were deemed to have interests in shares or underlying shares which
(i) were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or (ii) which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the
Listing Rules or, (iii) who will be, directly or indirectly, be interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings.

ESNBSTNESEE®
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Number of
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest interested  shareholding
=Y o]
EEHE B RmtE EEROEE BRED
Platinum Lotus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 1,500,000,000 75.0%
B AP (Long position)
(57%)
Ms. Dai Wing Yi Marjor Interest of spouse (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75.0%
Bk Tt Ao B (PaE2) (Long position)
(4F%)
Notes: PRRE -
1. The shares are held by Platinum Lotus Holdings Limited, the equity interest of which 1. &7 B Platinum Lotus Holdings Limited#F 48 + H&

is owned as to 100% by Mr. Chu Kwok Fun. Mr. Chu Kwok Fun is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Platinum Lotus Holdings Limited for the purpose
of Part XV of SFO.

2. Ms. Dai Wing Yi Marjor is the spouse of Mr. Chu and is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares which Mr. Chu is deemed to be interested in by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors have not
been notified by any entity who had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report

EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed under the “Related Party Disclosures” in Note 27
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, there were no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance, to which the Company,
any of its subsidiaries, its parent company, or its parent company'’s
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or any entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
and indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March 2023 or any time during the
Year, nor was there any other transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business between the Company
or any of the Company'’s subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

During the Year, no transactions, arrangements and contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Group by a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries were made.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance in respect of legal actions against them arising out
of corporate activities and such permitted indemnity provision for the
benefit of the Directors currently in force.
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EEGHRE

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the FY2023, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 27.0% and 65.8% (2022: approximately 28.2% and
50.1%). Revenue attributable to the Group's largest customers and the
five largest customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 31.0%
and 92.0% (2022: approximately 23.7% and 75.3%) respectively of the
Group's total revenue for the Year.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholders who are interested in more than 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company had any interests in the
Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

Employees

Our Group considers our employees as the key to sustainable business
growth and also recognises them as valuable assets. Further, in light
of the shortage of skilled labour in the local construction industry, it
is crucial to maintain a competitive remuneration package and fringe
benefits for our potential and existing employees. In this regard,
the Group provides comprehensive remuneration package which
includes salary, discretionary bonuses and other cash subsidies to
attract, motivate and retain appropriate and suitable employees to
serve the Group. In general, our Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, experiences and position
held. Our Group has designed an annual review system to assess the
performance of our employees, which forms the basis of our decisions
with respect to salary raises, bonuses and promotions. Our Group
also provides on-the-job training and development opportunities to
enhance employees’ career development and learning.
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Directors’ Report

EEGHRE

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS (Continued)

Customers

Our Group believes that we have maintained a close relationship with
our major customers. Besides, it is our priority to work with reputable
customers, which in turn can create more opportunities to undertake
sizeable projects. Working with these customers can allow us to secure
future business opportunities with them and bolster our job reference.

Besides that, our Group has no intention to limit ourselves to serve
our major customers and, with our presence in the industry, our Group
believes that we are able to extend our services to other customers.

As such, our Group is of the view that, despite the customer
concentration, our business model is sustainable.

Suppliers and Sub-Contractors

Our Group has developed stable and strong working relationships
with suppliers and sub-contractors to meet our Group’s customers’
needs in an effective and efficient manner. The Group works closely
with the suppliers and sub-contractors to make sure the tendering,
procurement and sub-contracting are conducted in an open, fair and
just manner. The Group’s requirements and standards are also well
communicated to them before the commencement of projects.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group's operations at work sites are subject to certain
environmental requirements pursuant to the laws of Hong Kong. The
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
include, among others, Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), and Waste Disposal (Charges for Disposal of
Construction Waste) Regulation.

In order to comply with the applicable environmental protection
laws, we had implemented measures to mitigate the environmental
impacts arising from air emissions, waste disposal, noise and resource
consumption. Apart from complying with the environmental protection
policies formulated and required by our customers, we have also
established our own environmental management policy to assure
proper management of environmental protection and compliance
of environmental laws and regulations by both our employees and
workers of the subcontractors on, among others, air pollution, noise
control and waste disposal. During the Year, we did not incur any
material costs on environmental compliance.
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EEEHE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and the management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float for its
shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout the Year and up
to the date of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

No purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
was made by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the controlling shareholders of the Company
nor their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is interested in a business apart from the Group's business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business by the Group are set out in Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, and none of which constitutes a
connected transaction as required to be disclosed as defined under
the Listing Rules.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any significant investment
held, any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.
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Directors’ Report

EEGHRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 5 March 2020. The terms of the Share Option Scheme
are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. The main purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
employees to optimize their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Company, to attract and retain best available personnel, to
provide additional incentive to employees (full time or part time),
directors, consultants, advisers of the Group and to promote success
of the business of the Group. Details of the Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

No share options were granted, cancelled, exercised or lapsed under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of
this report.

Share options may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Directors may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant. Despite the terms of the Share Option Scheme, any
grant of share options by the Company will comply with the Listing
Rules from time to time.

The number of options available for grant under the scheme mandate
at the beginning and the end of the Year was 200,000,000.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 200,000,000,
representing 10% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the Share Option
Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into for the Year.

BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2023 were approximately
HK$28.8 million (2022: approximately HK$21.0 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company or the Companies Laws of
the Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Share on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders of the Company.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out in Note 25 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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EEGHRE

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remunerations of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in the Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Company with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme”.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out in Note 25 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed "Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 34 to 51 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURES UNDER RULES 13.20 TO 13.22 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no circumstances which would
give rise to a disclosure obligation under Rule 13.20 to 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.
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EEGHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors: Mr.
Ma Tsz Chun, Ms. Leung Yin Fai and Ms. Yuen Wai Yee. Mr. Ma was
appointed to serve as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things,
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditor, review the financial
statements and provide advice in respect of financial reporting,
oversee the financial reporting process, internal control, risk
management systems and audit process, and perform other duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board.

The Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee on 28 June 2023.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the Year comply with
applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as the auditor of the Group for
the Year. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who shall retire in the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for
their re-appointment as auditor for the coming year will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Chu Kwok Fun
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed in achieving a high level of corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework for the
Company to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders, enhance its
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and relevant code provisions as set out under the CG Code,
as amended from time to time, contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. To the best of the knowledge of the Board, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out under the CG Code
throughout the Year except where otherwise stated. The Board will
continue to review and enhance the Company's corporate governance
policies to ensure compliance with statutory and professional standards
and align with the latest developments.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the Company
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the requirements of the Model Code throughout
the Year.
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TRERKE

CORPORATION CULTURE

The Board is responsible for establishing the Company’s desired
culture (“Corporate Culture”) by defining the purpose, values and
strategy of the Company and leading the management to build
up effective communication channel and incentive scheme for the
Corporate Culture.

The Company places strong emphasis on work quality and safety
while simultaneously devotes attention to meeting timelines, technical
specifications, architectural features, and aesthetic requirements of
projects undertaken by us. The key competitive strengths, which are
also the core values, of the Company include: (i) a good reputation
and a proven track record in facade works and building metal finishing
works in Hong Kong; (ii) delivering quality works in facade works
and building metal finishing works projects; (iii) strong capability
to implement the architectural designs of our customers; (iv) solid
business relationships with our major customers, suppliers, and
subcontractors; and (v) an experienced and dedicated management
team.

The Board believes that, through maintaining the abovementioned
competitive strengths, the Company would be able to achieve targeted
revenue growth and reasonable profit margins (which are the success
measurements of the Company). Detailed discussions and analyses
of the Company’s performance are included in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and the “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report. For effective communication of the Corporate Culture,
the Company'’s purpose, values and strategy, as well as its core values,
are clearly stated in its code of conduct which are distributed to all staff
of the Company.

As the Corporate Culture emphasizes on (i) professional services and
high quality of works, (ii) honesty and (iii) safety, the Board defines
key performance indicators ("KPIs") for assessing and monitoring the
Corporate Culture as staff training hours, whistleblowing data, accident
rates of construction sites and non-compliance records. The records
and data of the KPIs shall be reviewed and discussed by a working
group, which composes of members of the Company’s management
and employees from various departments and is leaded by one of the
Directors, in its regular meetings. Any misalignments with the Company
Culture noted would be discussed by the members of the working
group and reported to the Board, together with recommendations for
improvement.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of five Directors
including Mr. Chu Kwok Fun (Chairman) and Mr. Tsang Chiu Wan as
the executive Directors and Ms. Leung Yin Fai, Mr. Ma Tsz Chun and Ms.
Yuen Wai Yee as the independent non-executive Directors.

There is a balance of skills and experience for the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Biographical details are set out in the section headed "“Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
There are no family or other material relationships among members of
the Board.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as operation and financial performance of the Group.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman in drawing the agenda of each meeting and each
Director may request inclusion of matters in the agenda. All Directors
have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are complied with and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Pursuant to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and regular board meetings should be held at least
four times per year. Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The attendance record of each Director at the board meeting and
board committee meetings held throughout the Year is set out in the
table below:

BEg2m)

BEEEREAR(E)
SREEHERAEERTNEESCOERE
EZEBCEBMTHEANTE

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEE KERY
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Meeting Committee Committee Committee meeting
EZEE3 2 ENZEE FMZREE  REZEE RRAE
Executive Directors TES

Mr. Chu Kwok Fun REIEURE 4/4 - - 171 11
Mr. Tsang Chiu Wan LHRgEE 4/4 - n - 17

Independent Non-executive BV FH{TES

Directors

Ms. Leung Yin Fai REELL 4/4 3/3 11 171 11
Mr. Ma Tsz Chun BEELE 4/4 313 171 11 17
Ms. Yuen Wai Yee REGLT 4/4 3/3 1 - 17

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements of
rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors and all of the independent non-executive Directors
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors represent more
than half of the Board, the proportion of which is higher than what is
required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-
executive directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one third
of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence
element in the Board to safeguard the interest of Shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment contract with the Company for a period of three years
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors as set out in
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company (the
" Articles”).

The Board takes the responsibility collectively to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of all
policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitor the performance of the senior executives. The
Directors have to make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company. To oversee particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs, the
Board has established three board committees, including the audit
committee (the "Audit Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”).

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations, and are invited to serve on the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Board has delegated to the management, consisting of executive
Directors along with other senior executives, the responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction adopted by the Board
from time to time and conducting the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group.

The Board has delegated to the Board Committees the responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of references. Further details of
the Board Committees are set out in the sections headed “Audit
Committee”, “Nomination Committee” and “Remuneration
Committee” below.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chu Kwok Fun (“Mr. Chu"”) is the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
not be performed by the same individual. Taking into account Mr.
Chu has held the key leadership position of our Group and has been
deeply involved in the overall management, strategic planning and
development of our business operation since its establishment, the
Board considered that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
being performed by Mr. Chu enables more effective and efficient
overall business planning, decision making and implementation thereof
by the Group.

Mr. Chu also takes the lead to ensure that the Board works effectively
and acts in the best interest of the Company by encouraging the
directors to make active contribution in the Board's affairs and
promoting a culture of openness and debate.

The Board is of the view that although Mr. Chu is both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer, the balance of power and authority
under the present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure
will enable our Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board. A summary of the mechanisms is
set out below:

(i)  The Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of
reference to identify suitable candidates, including independent
non-executive Directors, for appointment as Directors.

(i) A nomination policy is in place with details of the process and
criteria of identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating and
integrating new directorship. Details of the nomination policy are
set out in the section headed “Nomination Policy”.

(i)  Each independent non-executive director of the Company
is required to confirm in writing to the Company his/her
independence upon his/her appointment as a director of the
Company with reference to such criteria as stipulated in the
Company'’s nomination policy as well as the Listing Rules.

(iv) Each independent non-executive director of the Company is
required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there
is any change in his/her own personal particulars that may affect
his/her independence.

(vy  The Nomination Committee will assess annually the
independence of all independent non-executive Directors and to
affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria of independence as
set out in the Listing Rules and is free from any relationships and
circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect,
their independent judgement.

(vi) Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
are encouraged to seek further information from the senior
management on the matters to be discussed at Board meetings
and, where necessary, independent professional advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

The Board has reviewed the above mechanisms and considered that
they are effective in ensuring that independent views and input are
provided to the Board. During the reporting period and up to the date
of this report, none of the independent non-executive Directors at the
time and currently sitting on the Board has served on the Board for
more than nine years. The Company has received written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his/her independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets forth the objective and approach to
achieve diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy provides that the Company
should endeavour to ensure that the board members have the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
that are required to support the execution of our business strategy.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length

of service.

When identifying potential candidates to the Board, the Nomination
Committee and the Board will, among others, (i) consider the
current level of representation of women on the Board and senior
management when making recommendations for nominees as well as
succession planning to the Board of Directors and senior management;
(ii) consider the criteria that promotes diversity by references to
the code of practices on employment published by the Equal
Opportunities Commission from time to time; and (iii) communicate the
Board Diversity Policy to the Nomination Committee and encourage a
cooperative approach to ensure diversity on the Board.

During the reporting period and up to the date of this report, the
Board comprises three male Directors (representing 60% of the
Board) and two female Directors (representing 40% of the Board). The
Company targets to avoid a single gender Board and will timely review
the gender diversity of the Board in accordance with the business
development of the Group.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diverse
perspectives which is appropriate for the business growth and
operations of the Group. The Company is also committed to ensuring
that recruitment and selection practices at all levels are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. As at
31 March 2023, the overall workforce (including senior management)
of the Group comprised 39 (72.2%) male and 15 (27.8%) female
employees. Further details on the gender ratio of the Group together
with other relevant data are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “"Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company, aims to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and to ensure the Board's continuity
and appropriate leadership. The Nomination Committee shall
identify candidates who are qualified/suitable to become a member
of the Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates nominated for directorships. The selection
of candidates will be based on a range of selection criteria as set out
in the Nomination Policy, including but not limited to, character and
integrity, qualification, potential contributions the candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of qualifications, skill, experience, independence
and gender diversity, the candidate’s willingness and ability to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board.

For the appointment of directors, the Nomination Committee will first
identify individual(s) suitably qualified to become board members
and assesses the independence of the proposed independent non-
executive director(s). Then, the Nomination Committee will make
recommendation to the Board for the Board to consider, having regard
to the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. The Board will
confirm the appointment of the suitable candidate or recommend the
candidate to stand for election at a general meeting of the Company.
The candidate(s) who is/are appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re-election
by Shareholders at the general meeting after initial appointment in
accordance with the Articles.

For the re-appointment of directors, the Nomination Committee
will also consider the retiring directors based on the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Director(s) before the Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to consider. After
the Board considers each retiring director, the Board will recommend
the suitable retiring director(s) to stand for re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles. The Shareholders will
approve the re-election of directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge, experience and length
of service) of the Board on a regular basis at least annually and
diversity of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has set up a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
with an aim to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient capital
to develop and operate the business of the Group and rewarding the
Shareholders. According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account the results of operation, cash flows,
financial condition, future business prospect, and other factors as the
Board may deem appropriate at such time.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also
subject to any constitutional documents of the Company and the
Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands, any applicable laws, rules
and regulations and the Articles. The declaration and payment of
future dividend under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board's
determination that the same would be in the best interests of the
Group and the Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the
Dividend Policy from time to time and may exercise at its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
such as a director training lesson organised by qualified professionals
during the Year to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
relation to their contribution to the Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Records of the training received by the respective directors are kept by
the Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the Year is
summarised below:

EENREEEEZR @)

BEEERZNEIIREIRFNART]

EEFRAFEEZ NS IER SRt
™

Attending webinar(s)/seminar(s)/
forum(s)/programme(s)/

conference(s) relevant to the business
or directors’ duties

FEHEREEREEREERN

Name of director BEENSR WEWNE WS WwiE 2R 22
Mr. CHU Kwok Fun KEESLE v
Mr. TSANG Chiu Wan DA ME ST v
Ms. LEUNG Yin Fai RHFIBLL A v
Mr. MA Tsz Chun SRR AE v
Ms. YUEN Wai Yee REFELZL v

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are,
among other things, to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external auditor, review
the financial statements and provide advice in respect of financial
reporting, oversee the financial reporting process, internal control, risk
management systems and audit process, and perform other duties and
responsibilities assigned by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available at the Company’s website and on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ma Tsz Chun, Ms. Leung Yin Fai, and Ms. Yuen
Wai Yee. Mr. Ma Tsz Chun currently serves as the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and
performed the following works:

(@) reviewed the Group's interim and annual financial statements;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

(b)  reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed their
potential impacts on the Group's financial statements;

(c) reviewed the Group's risk management and internal control
system and related matters; and

(d)  considered and made recommendations on the re-appointment
of the external auditor of the Group, and the terms of
engagement.

The Company's annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and approve the management'’s remuneration
proposals, make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of our Directors and senior management and ensure none of

Directors determines his/her own remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
at the Company's website and on the website of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The Remuneration Committee comprises the three existing
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Leung Yin Fai, Mr.
Ma Tsz Chun and Ms. Yuen Wai Yee, and an executive director, Mr.
Tsang Chiu Wan. Ms. Leung Yin Fai currently serves as the chairlady of
the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is
determined with reference to the responsibilities, workload, the
time devoted and the performance of the Group. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that no individual will be involved in
determining his/her own remuneration.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting
for reviewing the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors under the model described
in code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code and other related matters.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the Year are as follows:

BEEZEEH)

FMESE(H)

RIEMEE AT TRIEXBE 5 SR
ERB(ESRINRAFEERTMEELS M
GRS -

Number of

employee(s)

BEAE

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 381,000,000/ 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000/ 7T 1

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees are set out in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and select or
make recommendations on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available at
the Company’s website and on the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Nomination Committee comprises two existing independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ma Tsz Chun and Ms. Leung Yin
Fai, and an executive director, Mr. Chu Kwok Fun. Mr. Chu Kwok Fun

currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has held one meeting
for reviewing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, considering the qualifications of the retiring directors
standing for election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered that the non-executive

Directors are independent and the aforesaid policies have been
maintained up to the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the
Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year in
accordance with statutory requirements, the Listing Rules and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainty that may cause significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
89 to 95 of this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has been appointed as the external auditor
of the Company. For the FY2023, the remunerations paid or payable to
the external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit
services are approximately HK$1.1 million. There was no remuneration
for non-audit services.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has the responsibility to maintain effective internal control
systems and risk management in order to safeguard the Group's assets
and investments and the Shareholders’ interest and conduct a review
on an ongoing basis annually. The Board acknowledges that such
internal control systems and risk management are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board conducted review of the
effectiveness of the internal control systems and risk managements
of the Company in respect of the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance controls, risk management functions and the significant
ESG risk through the effort of the Audit Committee.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the Group's business. It was decided that the Board would be
responsible for internal control and risk management of the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The
situation will be reviewed annually.

During the Year, the Group engaged an external consultant (the
"Consultant”) to review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system, who worked closely with the Group to identify
risk components and risk owners in different aspects through interviews
with and workshops provided to the Group’s management. Also, the
Consultant assisted the Group to evaluate the adequacy of the existing
mitigation plans. Last but not least, findings and recommendations
resulting from the review were reported to and discussed with the
Audit Committee and the Board, and the Consultant concluded that
no significant area of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance control and risk management of the Group has been
identified.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
and the Board had reached the conclusion that the Group’s internal
control systems and risk managements were in place and effective.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for, among others, ensuring
that Board policies and procedures are followed. All Directors have
access to the Company Secretary’s advice and services. The Company
Secretary undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training and complied with all the required qualifications, experience
and training requirements of the Listing Rules for the Year.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders and potential investors is essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group's business, performance and
strategies. The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) with the objective
of ensuring that Shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company (including the financial performance,
strategic goals and plans, material development, governance and
risk profile). The Company also recognises the importance of timely
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and potential
investors to make the informed investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
the website of www.lotushorizonholdings.com; where up-to-date
information on the Company'’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. Latest information of the
Group including annual and interim reports, announcements and
other corporate communications which will be sent to Shareholders
and/or published are updated on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website in a timely fashion.

The Company also communicates with the shareholders mainly by
holding of annual general meetings which provide opportunities for
the shareholders to communicate with the Board.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

Shareholders and potential investors are welcome to visit the
Company’s website where contact details are available on the
Company'’s website for enquiries. The chairman of the 2022 AGM and
the chairman/members of the Board Committees and the external
auditor were available at the 2022 AGM to answer questions from
the shareholders. The procedures for conducting a poll have been
explained during the meeting.

The forthcoming AGM will be held on Thursday, 17 August 2023. The
notice of the AGM, setting out details of each proposed resolutions
and other relevant information, will be sent to Shareholders at least 21
days before the AGM.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders” Communication Policy during the Year. Having
considered the multiple channels of communication mentioned above,
the Company is satisfied that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
was implemented properly and remains effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Cayman Islands Company
Law for Shareholders to move new resolution at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph. As regards proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders
to Propose a Person for Election as a Director” of the Company which is
posted on the Company’s website.
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ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board
through the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
21/F, Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
(email: info@icgltw.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company had adopted a second amended and restated articles
of association of the Company by a special resolution passed on 17
August 2022 and effective on the same date. Save as disclosed above,
there was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
throughout the Year. The Articles is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  #HEREREHS

BOARD STATEMENT

Dear Stakeholders:

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the "Director(s)"),
| hereby present to you the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG”") Report (the "ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 March 2023,
providing an overview of the Group's management on significant ESG
issues that have impacts on the operation.

As the highest governance body, the Board is committed to
maintaining a high level of corporate governance and has the
responsibility to oversee ESG issues which are material to the Group.
The Group has established an ESG Working Group since 2020
which comprises members from different departments. The ESG
Working Group coordinates the implementation of related policies
and measures, and continuously optimise the Group’s sustainable
development strategies and performance across departments. It also
works with external independent consultant to identify, monitor and
review ESG-related risk and reports the progress to the Board.

Stakeholder engagement is an indispensable part of sustainable
strategies. It helps us respond to existing and potential risks and
opportunities in the market, and it is also the basis for strategy
formulation and decision making. In addition to daily communication
with stakeholders, we conducted a materiality assessment and invited
major stakeholders to prioritise the identified issues in the form of a
survey to determine the most concerning ESG issues, thereby adjusting
resource allocation and formulating more appropriate policies and
measures to respond to the needs and expectations of stakeholders
and make this ESG Report more targeted.

The operating activities of the Group inevitably cause direct or indirect
environmental impacts and climate change. We advocate waste
reduction and improving the efficiency of resource use in our business
operations, based on the interests of stakeholders. The Group has set
clear short-term and long-term sustainable development vision and
goals to progressively achieve ongoing emission reduction according
to governmental requirements. In order to promote the sustainable
development of the Group, we continue to strengthen our safety
management system to ensure the safety and health of our employees
at work. We recognise the importance of managing ESG impacts of the
supply chain, protect the interests of the local communities in which we
operate, and ensure that all operating units comply with local laws and
regulations.

Looking ahead, the Group will adhere to the pursuit of a better society,
commit itself to the common prosperity of enterprises, society and
the environment, create a win-win situation for all stakeholders, and
continue to be a force for social stability and upward improvement.

Lotus Horizon Holdings Limited
Chu Kwok Fun
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

28 June 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  #HEREREHSE

ABOUT THIS ESG REPORT

Lotus Horizon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

noou

(collectively referred to as the “Group”, “we"” or "us”) are delighted
to publish the fourth ESG Report to summarise the Group's policies,
measures and performance on the key ESG issues. This ESG Report

was reviewed and approved by the Board on 28 June 2023.

Reporting Period

This ESG Report covers the Group's policies and performance
regarding the environmental and social aspects from 1 April 2022 to
31 March 2023 (the “Reporting Period”, "FY2023").

Reporting Scope and Boundary

The information of this ESG Report covers the core and material
business of the Group, namely provision of design, supply, and
installation services for facade works and building metal finishing
works projects in Hong Kong, which are operated by our wholly-owned
subsidiary, ICGL Technical Works (HK) Limited (“ICGL (Hong Kong)"”)
and accounted for all of the Group’s revenue during the Reporting
Period.

Reporting Basis and Principle

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”)
as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with all “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide and followed the following reporting principles in the
preparation of this ESG Report: materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency.

J Materiality
The Group determines ESG issues that are significantly important
by stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment. Details
are explained in the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement”
and “Materiality Assessment” of this ESG Report.
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o Quantitative
Information is presented with quantitative measure, whenever
feasible, including information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions used and provision of comparative data.

o Balance
This ESG Report identifies the achievements and challenges
faced by the Group.

o Consistency
This ESG Report is the fourth ESG Report of the Group. This
ESG Report will use consistent methodologies for meaningful
comparisons in the following years unless improvements in

methodologies are identified.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal documents
and statistics of the Group, as well as the combined control,
management and operations information provided by the subsidiaries
in accordance with the Group's internal management systems. In the
event of contradiction or inconsistency between the Chinese version
and the English version, the English version shall prevail.

Feedbacks

The Group respects your view on this ESG Report. Should you have
any opinions or suggestions, you are welcome to send to us via email
to the following address: info@icgltw.com.
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board supports the Group’s commitment to fulfil its environmental
and social responsibility and has overall responsibility for the Group's
ESG strategy and reporting. The Board oversees the ESG strategies,
policies, objectives and targets. The Board has delegated the day-to-
day responsibility of the implementation to the senior management
and department heads. Senior management advises and supports
the Board on ESG matters, strategies, policies, manage and monitor
ESG performance and targets. Departments implement ESG policies
and related initiatives. The Board regularly reviews the Group's ESG
performance and examines and approves the Group's annual ESG
report.

The Group, on the other hand, has noticed that there is a growth of
public awareness on ESG-related issues in recent years, therefore an
ESG Working Group has been established since 2020 to serve as a
bridge between the Group and its stakeholders to enhance effective
communication on ESG-related matters. The ESG Working Group
currently composes of members of the management and employees
from various departments, including the finance, human resources,
administration, procurement and project management departments.

Apart from the role of acting as the communication channel between
the Group and its stakeholders on ESG-related issues, the ESG
Working Group is also assigned to bear the following responsibilities:

o Follows and reports to the Board and the top management on
the ESG strategies and proposes ESG initiatives for achieving the
sustainability objectives;

o Engages and communicates with stakeholders for performing
materiality assessment and formulating ESG strategies and
initiatives;

° Coordinates with staffs for delivery of the ESG initiatives;
° Determines the Key Performance Indicators (“KPI1") for
measurement of performance on aspects under ESG

requirements; and

o Monitors activities that affects the performance on aspects under
ESG requirements for on-going development and improvement.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the concerns of its stakeholders through
day-to-day communications. Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid
foundation for the Group's sustainable development and success. They
help the Group to develop a business strategy that meets the needs
and expectations of stakeholders, enhance the ability to identify risk
and strengthen important relationships. The Group communicates with
its stakeholders through various channels, as shown below:

Stakeholders

O ESH
AEBFEERFRBTHRENENBIEE
RNENERRARE A FERRLKINHE
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Communication Channel

Government and regulatory agencies o

B R EEHE

information

Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other public

Fih - PHWRE  RE  HSREAREREMBAFEER

Shareholders and investors °

R EIREE

shareholders

Annual general meetings and other general meetings of

BRAFAEREMERASE

o Company website

NIk

i Press releases/announcements

#HER A&

o Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other public

information

8 - RIS BN B REAREREMANER

Employees ] Training
(=] =l
o Meetings

-
=

. Performance evaluation

REREHE
e Surveys

BERAT

] Staff engagements and voluntary activities
BT2MERETIEE

o Intranet portal

RLEEE!

Customers

5P

Email, phone, conferences
BE - EENGEH

Suppliers/subcontractors/business partners

R, D Em, LB

Email

B

Phone

==

E
Conference
S

= A&

Company visits
E RN 2 7
Discussion groups
Al NE
Questionnaires

B15
Community and non-governmental ] Sponsorships and donations
organisations (NGOs) =EUSEEL

A1 Ko SRR AT AR A8

ESG reports
B - B REARE
Community services

At [ AR #%5
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In preparing this ESG Report, we engaged with different stakeholder
groups as part of the materiality assessment process to identify and
prioritise ESG issues to be covered in this ESG Report that have a
significant impact on the Group and stakeholders. The materiality

assessment process is as follows:

wE

EEMME

K&

B

T

1. We compiled a list of ESG issues and grouped them into four 1.

categories: Environment, Employment and Labour Practices,

Operating Practices and the Community.

2. An online survey was conducted to rate the importance of each 2.

issue from the perspective of a stakeholder group and the

Group, using a scale of 1 to 5. A materiality matrix was developed

based on the scores of the survey, the threshold for materiality

(i.e. the mean of the score) was set and a list of ESG issues was
prioritised.
3. Management reviewed the materiality matrix and the threshold 3.

for materiality. ESG issues, with a score higher than the mean

from the perspective of a stakeholder and the Group, were

prioritised as the most important ESG issues for the Group to

address and report on.
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Based on the materiality matrix, we believe the most pertinent ESG ~ EREEH45M - BMRAREBENRE 1
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THE IMPACT ON STAKEHOLDER

Materiality Matrix
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THE IMPACT ON THE GROUP
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Air Emissions 11 Employment Practices 20 Customers’ Privacy and
REBBEM EEED Confidentiality
Greenhouse Gas Emissions 12 Diversity and Equal Opportunities B PR IR
B SREEHE ZlbRTFEgE 21 Customer Satisfaction
Effluent Management 13 Anti-discrimination BEEMEE
AIKER SRR 22 Intellectual Property
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SUBJECT AREA A: ENVIRONMENTAL

Policies

Our Environmental Policy demonstrates our commitment to deliver
our services with no significant and adverse impact on the environment
and to ensure that our operations are in compliance with the relevant
environmental requirements pursuant to the laws and regulations of
Hong Kong. It sets out the management approaches on air emissions,
wastes management, noise control and resources utilisation.

In addition, the Group advocates energy saving and carbon reduction,
and is committed to achieving sustainable operations. To this end,
we have set clear emission reduction and energy efficiency targets,
which would be mentioned in the following sections. All targets set on
environmental KPIs will be reviewed and updated in due time by the
ESG Working Group and the Board.

Compliance Information

Our projects are subject to certain environmental requirements
pursuant to the laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including but not
limited to Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), and Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). Any non-compliance with these laws and regulations
may impose impacts on our business operations and financial
performance. The Group continues to improve our environmental
management process. During the Reporting Period, to the best of our
Directors” knowledge, the Group was not aware of any significant non-
compliance issues in this regard.

A1. Emissions

Air Emissions

As heavy construction machineries, such as tower cranes,
were provided by the main contractors; therefore the Group
was not able to obtain relevant fuel consumption data for the
air emissions calculation and the establishment of relevant
targets. We do not consume fossil fuel for our other equipment
for site installation works, and the Group does not own any
motor vehicle. In addition, the level of dust generated during
the installation process is insignificant and is not measurable
independently from other sources of air pollution at the
construction sites. Nonetheless, we are committed to reducing
air pollution by requiring our subcontractors to use electrical-
powered machines, such as scissor lift, cherry picker, boom lift,
and air compressor, during on-site installation so as to reduce
the level of air pollutant emission. We are also committed to
maintaining records of complaints about air pollution.
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Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

In response to the community’s gradual concern on greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emissions, climate changes and other related
issues, the Group has collected information to calculate the GHG
emissions generated from our operations.

During the Reporting Period, the total GHG emissions were 32.57
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tonnes CO_-e) resulting
in GHG emissions intensities of 0.003 tonnes CO,-e per sq. ft
and 0.60 tonnes CO,-e per employee, respectively. The GHG
emissions were incurred from electricity consumption of our
offices only. Both the total GHG emissions and GHG emissions
intensity decreased in the Reporting Period comparing to that
of last reporting period. We aim to reduce emissions by around
10% by 2027, compared with the 2020 baseline, and ensure
the Group’s GHG emissions target will comply with the local
requirements on or before 2030.

GHG Emissions' as at 31 March

BEREB(ODRERE DR
RERMEHARERE(RERE Y
M RIRE R E M ERZEN B
T ARECKREENSEREENE
EHREREBHINE -

REESE  BEREBHMBRER32.57
WMot EE(M _atixgs) &

BEREBEREEI>NABFEAR
0.003ME — & bix & £ & &% & 50.600
—aitirEE  BEREHERERS W
REBNERE - RREHHE - BERSE
FHBREMRERBHEREES E—@
WMEHRHBEHATE BMHEBEEER=
T4 BT -_FEMEERL
BRERDH10% - THERAEENEE
REFMBEE_S=ZFH2FTAE
EHHEK o

BE=HA=1—HEZERE"HHK

Unit 2023 2022
B —EC=F —E-CF
Scope 12 tonnes CO,-e 0 0
HE—2 WE—SE(LIREE
Scope 23 tonnes CO,-e 32.57 34.72
EE =3 WE S LREE
Total GHG emissions tonnes CO,-e 32.57 34.72
RERBHIRNEE WE S LIREE
GHG emissions intensity* tonnes CO,-e/sq. ft 0.003 0.004
BEREBEINEE BETRBE_ELRE S
GHG emissions intensity® tonnes CO,-e/employee 0.60 0.64
RERBEERETES BHREEE_SRES
1 The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions is made reference to the ! RERBHIGIE2RARRREZERRE

Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)
in Hong Kong published by the Environmental Protection Department,
and the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, the 2020 and 2022
sustainability report published by the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited.

Scope 1 refers to direct emission from the business operations owned or
controlled by the Group, such as emissions from fossil fuel burnt on site or
usage of the Group's motor vehicles.

Scope 2 refers to “indirect energy” emissions from the internal purchased
electricity consumption by the Group.

3 The total area of offices as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 were both
approximately 9,557 square feet.

> The total number of employees as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 were
both 54.
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The Group will continue to record and disclose its GHG emissions
annually. The Group will continue to refine the data collection
system and develop reduction strategy if appropriate based on
the projection of data in the coming years.

Waste Management

For the disposal of waste materials during the site installation
stage, either the main contractor or we will engage
subcontractors to handle the waste materials. While handling the
construction wastes, we require our subcontractors to: (a) ensure
the disposal of the wastes at licensed landfill sites; (b) engage
authorised or licensed wastes collectors (including chemical
wastes); (c) handle and store waste in a secured manner to avoid
pollution or contamination by wastes; (d) maintain and clean
waste storage areas regularly; (e) refrain from littering on site (both
on land or sea); (f) ensure waste collectors to cover trucks with
impervious sheeting or transport waste in enclosed containers to
minimise dust generation during transportation; and (g) maintain
trip tickets record.

The Group also encourages waste minimisation and recycling by
requiring responsible employees to (a) minimise over-ordering
and wastage of construction materials; (b) reuse glass panel
frame for transportation to reduce wooden box for packaging if
possible; (c) ensure works quality to avoid unnecessary repeated
works; (d) encourage suppliers to minimise/use recyclable
packaging; (e) return package materials to suppliers/other
organisations for reuse/recycle if possible; and (f) make use of
separate labelled containers provided by the Group for paper
and plastic to facilitate recycling of domestic solid waste in our
office buildings.

In general, the main contractors were responsible for arranging
waste disposal in the projects undertaken by us, and the Group
was responsible for the handling charges by way of contra-charge
or making direct payments. Therefore, we were not able to
obtain most of the data of waste disposal in our projects during
the Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period, there were
no construction waste generated from the project sites which
were handled by the Group. To develop proper waste disposal
management, we have set target and action plan to maintain
waste disposal records for projects that we are responsible for
waste disposal as well as summary of complaint records on waste
disposal.
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On the other hand, our business operations do not generate S—HHE AREMNEBHMLE - B
hazardous waste due to our nature of business. We have closely WEBLETGEEFTEEY - HME
monitored the office paper recycled and reused, and computer ) B 52 [0 W K BN AR e 8 PR AR % B A
assets disposal (which included desktop computers and desktop BENEEBA(PRE LBKRIEED
monitor being recycled). During the Reporting Period, there was W B ER) - NIMER - KETEEE
no computer assets disposal. Also, we encourage employees PEEEREIBN o o - ERRFIRR
to bring their plastic bottles back for recycling, as part of our B0 RFIEEES KB
environmental-friendly initiatives. The details on the amount of e E VR YR o BEREE A MR REY)
waste generated and collected, as well as their treatment are as HERHEEBERMT -
follows:
Waste generated as at 31 March BE3H31HELHEY

Wastes Treatment Method  Unit 2023 2022

=37 BETE B —®_=F —EIF

Non-Hazardous waste

FEEEY

Office paper Recycled or reused tonnes 3.40 3.45

NS [l 43k 7 71 A M43

Plastic bottles Recycled tonnes 0.21 0.24

B L 7

Total tonnes 3.61 3.69

&5t ]

Intensity tonnes per million

HK$ revenue® 0.019 0.016
mE FHEB TR

During the Reporting Period, we have reduced approximately RS B - BB B EIBOK 2 4917.57

17.57 tonnes of GHG emission through recycling. We will MR ERBEEN - RERMGESRIR

continue to contribute on environmental sustainability and RAFEEEEER - WE S REFEHRM

gradually improve our waste management plan in future. BIEEY B IEETE -

6 The total revenue of the Group in FY2022 and FY2023 were around g AEER T __FUHBFER-T=_=F
HK$223,991,000 and HK$190,621,000 respectively. B4 [ 0 4 36 5 31140 /5223,991,00078 7T

$2190,621,000/& 7T ©
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A2.

Noise Control

The main contractors will apply the Construction Noise
Permit from the Environmental Protection Department for
the construction works involving (a) erection or dismantling of
scaffolding; (b) loading, unloading or handling of rubble wooden
boards, steel bars, wood or scaffolding materials; (c) hammering;
and (d) other works that create noise from 7:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.
on weekdays and any time on Sundays and public holidays if site
installation works are needed to carry out on these days to fulfil
project requirements. In order to minimise noise pollution, our
Environmental Policy requires the Group and our subcontractors
to (a) select quiet equipment whenever possible, for example,
hand-held tools such as drill, grinder and welding machine,
for the site installation works; (b) avoid performing noisy works
during the restricted days and hours; and (c) shut down plants
and machinery if they are not in use.

Use of Resources

Minimising the consumption of resources is one of the key
considerations in our operations. Energy consumption is mainly
derived from electricity consumption from our offices as we do
not consume fossil fuel in our operations. For installation works at
construction sites, energy and water consumption are managed
by main contractors. Therefore, the corresponding energy and
water consumption data are not available.

Water Consumption

Water is supplied to our office building by municipal water
supply and we do not have any issue in sourcing water. Water
consumption data of office is not available as the related fee is
included in the rental fee of our office, the Group is unable to
obtain relevant data from the owner of the office premise for the
disclosure and establishment of water consumption reduction
target. Our Directors consider that our water consumption is
minimal as most of our operations are conducted at our offices, as
compared to factories or other construction companies.

Energy Efficiency

As stated in our Environmental Policy, we implement measures to
reduce electricity consumption at sites including but not limited
to: (a) shut off mains-powered plant and equipment when not
in use; (b) select energy-efficient plant and equipment; and (c)
reduce non-essential load.

In the offices, we control our electricity consumption through the
following: (a) setting energy-saving mode for computers where
possible; (b) setting room temperature range from 20°C to 25°C;
and (c) switching off unnecessary lighting, and power supply.
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During the Reporting Period, the total energy consumption was
83,517 kilowatt-hours(s) ("kWh"), resulting in energy consumption
intensities of 8.74 kWh per square feet (“sq. ft”) and 1,546.61
kWh per employee respectively. The energy consumption was
incurred by purchased electricity consumption of our offices.
Both the total energy consumption of electricity and the intensity
of energy consumption decrease during the Reporting Period,
as compared to last year. We have set target to reduce energy
consumption intensity kWh per sq. ft by 20% by 2027 with the
2020 baseline.

Energy Consumption as at 31 March

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  #HEREREHS

RIS HAR - REREFEEE /83 517TR
B([TRE])  SBZEREREBED R
BEEFR(TEFEAR]SI4TER LT
ZIEE1,546.61 FEE - 2R NERE It
ANEBEMENHEE - RIFEHH - E
NEEREFEREE AT /ﬁ%%ﬁaﬁ?fiiﬁ_t
—FEBATR - ZMERTEZ -

TR DR REE E_E_tiht
FRRFEERGEREREZER20% -

BE=A=1—HHEEFH#

Unit 2023 2022

Bfr —BC-=F —EICF

Electricity HAE= kWh T EL B 83,517.00 93,840.00

Total energy consumption BEJRHFERE kWh T EL I 83,517.00 93,840.00

Energy consumption gERERERE kWh/sq. ft 8.74 9.82
intensity* FEAHFRFEE

Energy consumption EEYSEEE LA kWh/employee 1,546.61 1,737.78
intensity® BHREB TR

The Group will continue to assess record and disclose our
energy consumption annually. We will continue to refine the
data collection system and develop reduction strategy during
the Reporting Period, such as requesting responsible persons to
perform check regularly on computers to ensure energy-saving
mode is on if the computers are left idling for a certain period
of time; perform regular checking to all temperature controls
in office to ensure the energy efficiency initiatives are properly
implemented.

Raw Materials and Packaging Materials

Aluminium, steel and glass are the major types of raw materials
for our operations. In view of the business nature of the Group,
there is no packaging material consumption by the Group. To
save the consumption of raw materials and saving costs, we
implement the measures as follows, including but not limited to
(a) ensure materials are handled and stored in good conditions to
prevent deterioration and wastage; (b) ensure materials are not
over-applied; and (c) influence subcontractors to take away and
reuse surplus materials in the same or other projects.
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A3.

A4.

W

The Environment and Natural Resources

The major environmental impacts of our operations include air
pollution, waste management, noise and resource utilisation.
The significance of these impacts is identified and evaluated
according to legal requirements, environmental consequence,
and uses of materials and company concerns. We will assess
the implications and requirements of the environmental
protection laws and regulations and apply for necessary permits
(if applicable) to conduct its work. We have adopted several
measures for these environmental focus areas as mentioned in
the above sections.

To promote environmental protection in our operations, we
actively participate in green building projects. During the
Reporting Period, we continue to implement the Building
Information Modelling (“BIM") software for three of our projects.
BIM software aids in sustainability as it enables users to study
design options by taking environmental viability into account,
the software also supports the function of Energy Analysis which
enables optimisation on the building structure for an energy-
efficient model. Looking ahead, the Group will consider making
use of BIM software for more construction projects if possible.

Climate Change

Climate change is one of the biggest global challenges faced by
the society nowadays, and we must act now to be prepared for
the impacts caused by climate change on our communities and
industry. In recent years, extreme weather, such as strong winds
and heavy rainfall, as well as tides and floods, have become
the focus of news. Logistics and supply chains are particularly
vulnerable. Heavy rainfall, rising tides, and floods can cause
serious damage to assets such as buildings, warehouses, and
goods in storage, resulting in financial losses.
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In response to the Paris Agreement, the Hong Kong Government
issued the "Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan”, and formulated
various plans and actions, setting out the vision of “Zero-
carbon Emissions, Liveable City, Sustainable Development”.
The government has determined to set medium-term goal as
halving Hong Kong's total carbon emissions from 2005 levels
before 2035, committed to achieve carbon neutrality by 2050. In
the context of the global transition to a low-carbon economy,
the Group has also identified potential risks associated with
regulatory, technological, market and reputational aspects
specific to the location in which we operate. We will integrate
these identified risks into our business strategy, integrate
assessment and its results into the business risk management
framework, and continuously and regularly update and identify,
assess and manage various risks.

Action on climate change
The Group has taken references to the Recommendations of
the Task Force on Climate-related Finance Disclosures and
embedded climate consideration in the Group’s business
strategy and reflected in the governance and management
processes of the Company.

Core Element

The Group's Responses
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HECERGE) - BABNER T(EE
RIRTTENEER]) - HIE S IHFTEIMTTE) -
R NHRITREN  SKEHRE  FHEH
RINES - BTEHFTH#MER £
T_RAFAEEBNRFREER T
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BAMER - SHMEREESRER

R RIRBLITE
AEBE2ERIZEMMBRE TIEE
BEE  BRIEEZMAREENER
REE - YRRIEARBIWNERREER
T2 o

BOEER REBE M EL
Governance ] Set-up ESG Working Group and regular meeting
A PRAERIR - g REARTIENE R EHRITEH
o Integrate ESG topics (including climate-related issues) in
corporate decision making
IR - gk (BIERIRABRRE) WA B FORE
Strategy o Identify risk and opportunities in climate change and low-carbon
SR transition
B AR A 1 e AN B
Risk Management o ESG Working Group leading the Group to discuss and review
[ 38 ESG risks
BRI @ REA TR EREAEEN®mEEHNRE ek
ERRER
] Prepare for the transition to a low-carbon economy
ARERR A B R O
o Prepare and set-up measures to physical climate risks
ZER AN E FE fi e B9 HE 5t
Metrics and Targets ] Establish GHG reduction targets so as to achieve net zero
EEMER emissions

HERERERFEER

BERFEHIN
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We have assessed potential climate-related risks and AR T B RE AR A 1 R B AN

opportunities. These risks and opportunities are discussed in the B e

sections below.

SUERBRMEBRE T XEEPH

A
af ©

Timeframe Risks Opportunities
Ry & [ B 3]
Short-term (0-1 year) ° Acute physical risks — extreme o New services to help communities

ZH(0-14F)

weather events (e.g. coastal flood)
M EEER — Eim R RE 4 (Fl
T HEK) °
Securing the skills and capability
required to implement climate
strategy

FEOR B i RUR SR IS P 5 OB BE RBE D

decarbonise

& Bt R AR 0 3T AR
Technologies to enhance the
performance of operations and
energy efficiency

PRTTEE ML IR R AR RN

Medium-term (5 years)

RHI(5F)

Chronic physical risks — increasing ~ ®
in mean temperature may have
an impact on the progress of

Transitioning to low carbon economy
market to meet government
decarbonisation targets

construction work MEREEMIZER - UBIRBTH
BT ERRE - FIREH SRR R B R
L THE

Transition risks — implementation of
low-carbon policies for the operation
BERER - REEREERBUR
Transition risks — supply and demand
for certain commodities, products
and services may change as climate
related risks and opportunities are
increasingly taken into account
B — EE RS E B R
IRABRER RS - & Tigm -~ E
mA R H R R RE R B A E b

Medium- to long-term
(5+ years)
RREA(GFLAL)

Transition risks — potential new o
regulations and policies
BERE R — B IER MBUR
Transition risks — development and
use of emerging technologies may
increase the operational costs, and
reduce the Group's competitiveness
38R e — 3 B e 4l ) B B A 52 AR T
%Q?MM ERA - WIHEAREE
BT
Transition risks — the Group's
reputation may be impacted due to
changing customer or community
perceptions of said the Group's
contribution to or detraction from
the transition to a lower-carbon
economy
BERR -HREFIHtREAEE
MBS BE R N B RSURIBN B
EARM  AEEBEARETE
AFE

Transitioning to low carbon economy
market to meet government
decarbonisation targets
FUEAR T HEE - ABIRBATH
A B AR

To work as a pioneer in the industry
and build up the relevant reputations

ARTTRA R 2 AR E
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BPEASEEERE LR — RIE
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A series of measures have been adopted to put in place along
the Group's value chain to help the Company prepare for climate

68

events. These measures are deployed for different geographies, o BERINEEHLRD  UBEREB@ME -
taking into account the asset type, location and relevance. These EZ:; EHET TR IR R I ETIHE -
are summarised in the table below: BRURR TR
Part of the
Climate-related Risks Mitigation and Adaptive Measures Value Chain
RIZEEARER EENEEE BEENES
Market risk Diversify material supply from multiple suppliers, sources and  Supply chain
M5 E R countries ey
EEZERER  RRREK - @M EEEZ T
Acute physical risk: Monitor and inspect assets regularly Operation
extreme weather events FHE I Mg B EE =g
SHEERR - BmAREN Maintenance of a Contingency Plan for all facilities and
projects
SAPTA AR IR B I ST R
Establish a typhoon response protocol and coordinating Services
system, and conduct regular drills and post-typhoon reviews — AR7%
to ensure smooth execution of contingency plans
i 7 Be 2 FE 1 05 = ANG A - T BT TR AR TR [\ 1% [l
BRESTERIEFENTT
Enhance the communication capacity of customer services, in
particular post-incident customer communication
RAZFIRBHERE S - FHREFRNEEENETPER
Acute physical risk: Deploy anti-flooding measures suitable for the assets, Operation
coastal flooding including drainage systems, flood gates and flood barriers, if &7
SUERERE necessary
NEVEREYIN WMnE - SEEEEANIIEER - BEYIKRLS - R R
B St RRpE
Chronic physical risk: Maintain cooling equipment in good conditions Operation
increasing mean temperature  {REHZ AIRBERI R4 AARE EiE

EHEER

Review working hours of worker and provide better working

EFig/mEﬂ'm environment to negotiate for lower insurance rates
BERTANTERR  RETERE  HRERRENRRE

Increase drinking fountains for employees and workers, if
possible

FERTRENER T - RIEBM T ARHE SRSk

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

I%

B HERERRE

SUBJECT AREA B. SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practice

B1.

Employment

Policies

Staffs are one of the critical success factors in our vision and
ambition to hold a leading and reputable position in the industry
and society. The quality of our staff is a determining factor for
our success, and this holds for both technical and support staff
of all levels. Our Employee Handbook sets out the details on
dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hours, rest periods,
diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination. Our
Human Resource Management Policy outlines our management
approaches on recruitment, dismissal, remuneration, and other
benefits.

Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

The Group adopts the principles of fairness, impartiality and
openness, and recruits outstanding and suitable talents. Anyone
who has certain professional knowledge and who is passionate
about the work of the Group, who passes the assessment can
meet the requirements for employment, is welcomed to be part
of our family.

The Group values the personal growth and progress of the
employee because the future of the Group depends on the
success of our employees. We provide employees with smooth
and sustainable career development. We value the professional
competence of our staff and use this as a professional
planner’s professional development to build a professional
team. The dismissal procedure strictly follows the related laws
and regulations in Hong Kong. In case of termination of an
employee, a letter should be issued to the employee based on
the contract terms and Hong Kong Labour Laws. The resigned
employee is required to return all the company’s properties
on the last day of employment. Human Resource Department
should use the "Collect and Return Checklist” to ensure all
items are received, and both the employee and the department
sign for acknowledgement. For the purpose of improvement of
Human Resources Management Policy, an exit interview will be
conducted for managerial grade employees, by the department
head to understand the reason for the resignation.

FEHEBHE

EENREIER
B1. E&
BZE

RBFNBERZES - BB TIHAFIKT
REBTERMERENTIHREMALZ
MREE  BTERERMRIZ@E
B EARSERNEMEEYX
BEAR - RfIWEE FMEEREE A
BB IR KEH Z-F
EHERRIBRNFE - HPINANE
REEBRRBARPERE - RE -
B B A iR A T E R E TR T & o

HE - B REEE

REBRARF - RIE - AR
UHREES - AEOAT - RAEDA
B—EEXEMH  BREAREENTE
@btz kmeREERMALMA
BAIRREE

REBORKEBURNBEE KT - A
SEEREENEARKIES - B
REBRHERERE ARENIEERR -
HZMHEREENFEED  WHHEAIE
EXRIMNEXBREE - UBUE
XEK - EREFBRBETEERRE
BIRER - EREREOHBRT - EIR
BAENGRRBE(BTR)REE %D
E - BEREEVAEXBRE KRB
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Remuneration and compensation

To attract and retain talents, the Group offers a competitive
remuneration package with a variety of benefits, including but
not limited to salary adjustment, discretionary bonus, Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes, employee compensation for staff at
office and project site such as medical coverage for employees
and their spouses and children, medical insurance for injured
worker, and education reimbursement.

Rest period and working hours

All employees are entitled to public or statutory holidays
as announced in The Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Gazette each year, as well as reasonable
working hours and rest periods. In addition to those holidays,
employees are entitled to annual leave, sick leave, maternity/
paternity leave, etc..

Equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination

The Group is committed to provide a fair and equal working
environment for all employees, ensure employees are treated
equally in every aspect of their jobs. The Group recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diversified workforce to
enhance the quality of its performance. Diversity is the value
incorporated in recruitment practices. We are committed to
providing a discrimination-free working environment. The value
of diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination apply
to all aspects in employments, including but not limited to
recruitment, promotion, transfer, job assignment, rewards and
benefits, training and development, and suspension.

At the Board level, the Group also recognises increasing diversity
as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
Our Board Diversity Policy endorses the principle that our Board
should cultivate the diversity and a balance of, including but not
limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of
service.
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Other welfare or benefits

To create a friendly and caring working environment to our
employees, we have carried out different staff activities to
cultivate self-confidence, sense of belongings and cohesion
of employees. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
organised Christmas Party and Annual Dinner for our employees.
Given the opportunities to socialise and interact with each other
in a relaxed atmosphere could strengthen their relationships and
cultivate their sense of belongings to the Group. The Group also
encouraged our employees to join Walk for Millions with their
family to encourage mutual support relationship among them.

Compliance information

The Group strictly abides by related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Employment Ordinance (Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 527 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Race Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 602 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). A breach of these ordinances can result in civil
and/or criminal ramifications and significant impact on the
Group's relationship with its workforce. During the Reporting
Period, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, the Group was
not aware of any significant non-compliance case in this regard.
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Our employee profile and employee turnover rate are as follows. BPREEAREEMAELNT -
Employee Profile Employee Turnover®
As at 31 March’ For the year ended 31 March
R=A=+—HH HE=A=1t—-HLFEMN
& S8R B &R K=
2023 2022 2023 2022
—B-=fF —T-—F B —T-—F
Number of Number of
employees employees % %
BEAH BEAHK % %
By Gender By Gender
Eoqidall g il
o Male 39 42 e Male 29 31
ES 5
o Female 15 12 o Female 17 37
z 8
By Age Group By Age Group
1RFAER BRERAER
o Below 30 5 7 e Below 30 58 53
3055 AT 305 AT
. 30-50 34 31 e 30-50 17 28
30E505% 30E505%
° Over 50 15 16 o Over 50 25 27
505% A 1= 5075 A £
By Employment Type By Geographical Region
RIERER HIEE
o Full-time 53 52 e Hong Kong 26 33
a1 B
° Part-time 1 2
Fe
By Geographical Region
R IR [ 1
° Hong Kong 54 54
s
Total 54 54 Overall 26 33
#at R

/ It includes the employees of the Group only. Workers of the subcontractors 7 EEEAEENES TRESBEENHIA -
are excluded.

8 Turnover rate = Total number of employees left during the corresponding 8 MR = BB R B A (REH
reporting period/(Total number of employees left during the corresponding HEBOES BB+ REHRNEEREH) -
reporting period + Total number of employees at the end of the AEERREHRENESRABES £ /19
corresponding reporting period). The Group had a total of 19 employees E=]

turnover during the Reporting Period.
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Health and Safety

Policies

The Group is committed to safeguarding the safety, health
and welfare of all employees, workers, and persons including
subcontractors and the general public likely to be affected by
the normal operations. To achieve our commitment, we maintain
a high standard regarding safety and health. Our Industrial
Safety Policy aims to ensure that all of our employees and our
sub-contractors’ workers under our responsibility are working
safely at the site area. On the other hand, any potential risks
thereon arising can be mitigated or eliminated through the
implementation of various measures so that the interests of the
Group can be protected and safeguarded.

Compliance Information

Our projects are subject to certain safety and health requirements
pursuant to the laws and regulations in Hong Kong, including but
not limited to Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance
(Chapter 59 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “"FIU Ordinance”),
Construction Sites (Safety) Regulations (Chapter 591 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Factories and Industrial Undertakings (Safety
Management) Regulation (Chapter 59AF of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“FIU(SM)R"), Factories and Industrial Undertakings
(Lifting Appliances and Lifting Gear) Regulations (Chapter 59J
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Occupiers Liability Ordinance (Chapter 314 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was involved in
litigations of non-compliance due to the workers' failure to follow
the safety instruction from the subcontractors. The Group has
taken immediate remedial actions to increase the frequency of
site inspections and provide additional training. The incidents
have no significant impacts on the validity or renewal of the
Group's qualification and licenses. We will continue our efforts
to raise safety awareness amongst our stakeholders and to
ensure that we learn from incidents happened to prevent any
reoccurrence.

Safety Management System Audit

Pursuant to the FIU(SM)R, we are required to implement a safety
management system and carry out safety audits of our safety
management system.
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During the Reporting Period, we were required to conduct
regular safety audits on ICGL (Hong Kong) as required by
FIU(SM)R. We had engaged an independent safety auditor
and conducted all the safety audits. These safety audit reports
revealed that we had maintained a good safety management
standard and there was no material finding of non-compliance
with the FIU(SM)R in relation to our safety management system.

Occupational Health and Safety System

Organisation

Our safety management system is monitored and implemented
by our safety officers and safety supervisors, under our General
Manager and Project Team Manager respectively. As at the
end of the Reporting Period, we had 1 safety officer and 3 site
supervisors. We generally assign at least one site supervisor to
each project to monitor our safety management system. Our
safety officer and site supervisors conduct regular internal safety
inspections to ensure our operations are conducted in such
manner so as to reduce the risks to persons and properties.

Planning and Implementation

We adopt a preventive approach with an emphasis on hazard
management and risk assessment. We conduct internal risk
assessment and review regularly. We aim to control our risk
level by identifying risks and hazards in the course of execution
of projects and provide training and supervision to enhance
awareness of hazards and to be prepared for contingency
situations.

We have developed and maintained a safety management
system for our operation where records of non-compliance with
safety procedures and remedial measures are properly managed
and reviewed. We have adopted an internal safety manual
highlighting the general rules and regulations applicable to our
site operations. We also require the strict implementation of our
safety system with supervision by us or the management staff of
our subcontractors.

Safety Education

We conduct safety induction training for our new employees
and subcontractors. Our subcontractors are required to provide
safety and protective equipment, such as fall arresters and safety
boots, to the workers. Our safety supervisor also ensures that all
personnel wear protective equipment properly at the worksite.
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We disseminate occupational health and safety information to
employees, visitors and contractors and conduct briefings on
occupational health and safety on a regular basis. We provide
safety training to all of the workers at the sites for safety
regulations compliance.

Subcontractors Communication

We require our subcontractors to abide by all relevant
legislations, codes and guidelines as well as all safety
requirements as stated in our safety manuals and project safety
plans and to comply with all current and future enactments
relating to their works. While selecting the subcontractors, we
will take into consideration their safety standards, which include
evaluating their safety management system, track records on
safety and safety training records. Fines will be imposed upon
the subcontractors if they fail to implement our internal safety
guidelines.

We hold regular meetings with our subcontractors to follow up
on any safety measures in the course of execution of the projects.
We also evaluate the safety measures regularly to improve
safety control. Subcontractors who failed to follow the safety
measures and refused or failed to rectify will be removed from
our approved subcontractors list.

Evaluation

All workplace incidents should be reported immediately to
the relevant project managers, safety officer and our executive
director and senior management subsequently. The incident
should be reported with requisite further information on the
incident, including the date and time of the incident, place of
incident and name of the injured. Investigation would be carried
out by our Safety Officers and corrective actions would be
implemented for monitoring occupational hazards in future.

Office Hygiene and Safety

We implement measures to ensure the health and safety
of employees at offices. For example, (a) first aid kits and
fire extinguishers are equipped at offices; (b) pest control is
conducted annually; and (c) offices are cleaned and the garbage
is handled regularly by designated personnel to maintain the
hygiene of the offices.
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Response to COVID-19 Pandemic

The challenges arising from the COVID-19 pandemic are
unprecedented. To mitigate the risk of infection and the
transmission of the virus in the workplace, the Group has
established a COVID-19 Policy. A series of precautionary
measures and guidelines are set up in the policy that require all
employees to follow, including but not limited to requiring staff
to conduct rapid antigen tests (test kit provided by the Group)
before entering project sites, providing hand sanitiser, utilising
online conference call and establishing reporting procedures
in case of confirmed COVID-19 cases. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has updated the policy several times in
response to the Hong Kong Government'’s updates on COVID-19
measures. In March 2023, the Hong Kong Government has lifted
all mandatory mask-wearing requirements and social distancing
measures. Nevertheless, the Group would keep safeguarding the
workplace health and safety for our employees.

Safety Performance

Despite the fact that we have a comprehensive safety
management system together with various safety control
measures to mitigate safety risks, the occurrence of accidents
or injuries to workers on our sites is not uncommon due to the
nature of the works of the building construction industry. During
the Reporting Period, our performance relating to occupational

health and safety are as follows:

Safety Performance as at 31 March
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Number of work-related fatalities [ T{ERRE LT HI ALK
Fatalities rate per 1,000 workers” ~ &F & T AstAISLT-R9
Lost days due to injuries AITGHEEATIERE

The Group continues to review the existing occupational health
and safety management system and elevate the safety awareness
of the employees and subcontractors.

9

average employees and workers) x 1,000.
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B3.

Development and Training

Policies

As stipulated in our Staff Training Policy, we expect all staff
equipped with up-to-date professional knowledge and technical
skills to support the Group's objectives. We encourage their
participation in various training courses and programs to enhance
job efficiency and working performance.

We support the training and development of our employees.
Reimbursement of the training fee will be paid to all employees
in accordance with the terms of our Staff Training Policy as well as
upon the approval of senior project managers, general manager
and directors.

We provide on-the-job training for our new staff. We also
encourage our staff to attend various training courses organised
by third-party course providers. We have also provided specific
site training to our site personnel in respect of the management
of quality, environmental protection, health and safety matters.

During the Reporting Period, our employees participated in
various training, including but not limited to Green Card Training,
Construction Safety Supervisor Training, Silver Card Training,
CPD Training for up-to-date leadership and strategic skills on
business management, Director Training for the Requirement
of the Listing Rules, BIM (Revit) Training, Company Secretarial
Practices Course, Health and Work Safety Talk, and Site Induction
Training.
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Performance F-3:¢

The Group had a total of 52 employees received training and RmEERE - AEERAEBEREEERE
completed a total of 765 training hours during the Reporting g - WE TR 765/ NEEEF o BRI
Period. The percentage of the trained employee, and the JNEERASHLERERZREE TRHTEY
average training hours completed per employee'® are as follows: EIRFEON T

Percentage of Trained Employee
as at 31 March"
HE=-A=1t—-RAEXBINESR

Average Training Hours
as at 31 March?
BE=A=1t—RANFIEFI

ERaa g2
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EBo=F —E-—4F —Eo=F —E-—F
hours/ hours/
% % employee  employee
% % hEEE NEREE
By Gender By Gender
beoqi sl g el
o Male 97 98 e Male 15.72 7.67
= 5
o Female 93 92 o Female 10.13 7.08
z z
By Employment Category By Employment Category
RIERLERR RIERER
o Senior management 100 100 e Senior management 18.67 9.50
RRERE BRERE
o Middle management 94 100 e Middle management 11.44 3.93
RAREEE ARETEE
o General staff 97 94 e General staff 14.28 8.77
—RIEE —REE
Total 96 96  Overall 14.17 7.54
et 2R
10 Data for Competence Person (Non-track) Training and AutoCAD trainings 10 BB AL (FERE) 53| RAutoCADIE HIEY
are excluded. FIE T BEER ©
" Percentage of trained employee = Total number of employees received " BEXEINEE TS =-REBREZEIN

training during the corresponding reporting period/Total number of

employees as of the end of the corresponding reporting period.
Average training hours = Total training hours during the corresponding 2 TN B =R S MR AR SR B RS EA
reporting period/Total number of employees as of the end of the NEERE -

corresponding reporting period.
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B4.

B HERERRE

Labour Standards

Policies

The Group prohibits any form of child labour, forced labour
and illegal labour. Our major business activities are carried out
in Hong Kong. Our suppliers do not involve in labour-intensive
activities such as manufacturing in general. To the best of
our Directors’ knowledge, there is no operations or suppliers
considered to have significant risk for incidents of child or forced
labour in terms of types of business activities and operating
locations.

In our recruitment process as stipulated in our Human Resources
Management Policy, our human resource department will inspect
and take a copy of the original of each candidate’s Hong Kong
identity card and/or other documentary evidence showing that
he/she is lawfully employable in Hong Kong. We also installed
the required identification checking device onsite to prevent
illegal workers from working in the sites. Immediate termination
of contract and investigation would be carried out in case when
child labour or forced labour are discovered.

Compliance Information

The Group strictly abides the Immigration Ordinance (Chapter
115 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employment of Children
Regulations (Chapter 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
laws and regulations relating to employment as stated in the
section headed "B1. Employment” in this ESG Report. During
the Reporting Period, to the best of Directors’ knowledge, the
Group was not aware of any significant non-compliance case in
this regard.

Operating Practice

BS.

Supply Chain Management

Policies

The Group works closely with our suppliers and subcontractors
who are committed to high quality, environmental, health and
safety standards. To manage the environmental and social
risks of our suppliers and subcontractors, we formulate internal
policies and procedures, such as Management of Subcontracting
and Procurement Policy to set out the selection and evaluation of
suppliers and subcontractors. As part of our Environmental Policy,
we prefer engaging suppliers in producing environmentally
friendly products (e.g. manufacturers that use eco-friendly
coating on their products).
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Supplier Management

Our suppliers include suppliers for (a) building materials
used in our design, supply, and installation projects, such as
aluminium, steel products, and glass; (b) material fabrication
or processing services; and (c) other miscellaneous services
such as transportation, rental of machinery and equipment, and
laboratory testing services.

Supplier Selection

The Group has established thorough procurement procedures.
In selecting our suppliers, we will consider their price, project
credentials and capability, the scale of operation, previous
performance and quality, and the time required to provide and
deliver the required materials or services. Where necessary and
appropriate, considerations on the impact on the environment
and social risks are also taken into consideration, such as market
reputation, waste management and environmental protection.
Suppliers with environmental protection licenses and Quality
or technical certification (ISO) are preferable. We maintain an
approved list of suppliers and it would be reviewed and updated
from time to time. Our project engineers will examine the
quantity and quality of the materials ordered and ensure that the
delivery can meet our project schedules and requirements.

Supplier Evaluation

After completion of the project, our project manager will assess
the performance of our suppliers based on, among others, their (a)
ability to meet the delivery schedules; (b) ability to meet the test
requirements; (c) response to our instructions; (d) ability to honour
warranties and guarantees; () commitment of management; (f)
quality of goods and services; and (g) cost competitiveness etc..

Subcontractor Management

Our subcontractors include subcontractors for (a) on-
site installation works and (b) the lease of machinery and
equipment. It is industry practice in Hong Kong for facade
works and building metal finishing works contractors to engage
specialised subcontractors for on-site installation works. These
subcontractors have their own labour force.
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Subcontractors Selection

We maintain a list of approved subcontractors, which is reviewed
by our project team on an annual basis. The established
relationship with our subcontractors enables us to have better
control over the quality and schedule of works. We select our
subcontractors based on various criteria, including their work
credentials, tender price, technical capability, and prior working
relationship with us. We also require our subcontractors to
comply with the applicable registration requirements issued by
the Construction Industry Council.

Subcontractors Monitoring

While the subcontractors are required to comply with all relevant
rules and regulations in connection with the works and their
responsibilities and policies relating to quality control, work
safety and environmental protection, we remain accountable to
our customers for the quality of services rendered by them. We
have put in place procedures and control measures to monitor
the quality of works performed by our subcontractors.

For each project undertaken by us, a project management team
will be established to oversee the general compliance by our
subcontractors with our requirements and we will also designate a
safety supervisor and/or site supervisor to monitor and supervise
the works of our subcontractors to ensure our subcontractors are
meeting the relevant safety and workmanship requirements. Our
safety supervisors have regular on-site inspections according to
our safety and environmental requirements. We also have regular
meetings with our subcontractors to address any material issues
and to update their knowledge on safety and environmental
issues. We provide our subcontractors with our internal guidelines
on safety and environmental requirements and closely monitor
their compliance with our internal guidelines. We also investigate
the causes of any non-compliances and establish preventive
measures and maintain records of non-compliances regarding
safety, environmental and other issues of our subcontractors.

Furthermore, our project manager shall arrange a joint inspection
with our customers upon completion of the works done by
our subcontractors to ensure that they are consistent with the
contract design, specifications and requirements.
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We strictly prohibit our subcontractors from hiring any illegal
workers and we require our subcontractors to check carefully
the identification documents of workers engaged by them to
ensure that no illegal workers are hired. We also require our
subcontractors to follow the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to occupational health and safety at the construction
site. Under the relevant statutory requirements, all personnel
employed to work at the construction sites are required to attend
the construction industry safety training session on occupational
health and safety regulations and obtain the training certificate
before they can work at the construction sites.

Subcontractors Evaluation

We evaluate and assess the performance of our subcontractors
after the completion of the project. Our project manager will
review the performance of the subcontractors based on, among
others, their (a) ability to meet the delivery schedules; (b)
ability to meet the requirements of the test; (c) response to our
instructions; (d) ability to honour the defect liability period; (e)
commitment of management; (f) quality of services; and (g) cost
competitiveness. If a subcontractor fails the assessment, general
manager or director has the discretion to remove the relevant
subcontractor from the list of approved subcontractors.

Supplier and Subcontractor Profile

As at 31 March 2023, we have a total of 151 suppliers and
subcontractors. The majority are from Mainland China and
Hong Kong. The geographical distribution' of our suppliers and
subcontractors are as follows:

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Regions as of 31 March
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Hong Kong B 47
Mainland China e N 173 76
South Korea [ 1
Overseas MBI 27
Total st 151

3 It is determined based on the primary location in which products and/or

services are provided by the suppliers and/or subcontractors to the Group.
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Bé.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to implementing and maintaining a
high-level quality management system with full compliance of
applicable laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, to
the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there was no products sold
or shipped subject to recall for safety and health reasons and no
significant concern towards health and safety of customers due to
the nature of the Group's business. The Group also attaches high
importance to occupational health and safety of our employees
and workers at sites. For relevant policies and measures
undertaken by the Group, please refer to the section headed "B2.
Health and Safety” for further details.

Project and Service Quality

Policies

High quality of both materials and subcontractors’ works can
contribute to the effectiveness and efficiency of the operations
of all construction projects, which is crucial to our sustainable
development, as stipulated in our Quality Control Management
Policy.

Quality Management System

To maintain consistent quality and safety of services for
customers, the Group has established a formal quality
management system which is certified to be in compliance with
the requirements of 1ISO 9001:2015. A surveillance audit would
be held on a half-year basis by an independent third party, who
will visit the Company and selected construction sites to carry
out audit on selected business cycles to assure the continuous
implementation of procedures as required by I1SO.

Our project managers and site supervisors bear the responsibility
to monitor the overall progress and quality of works undertaken
by our material suppliers and subcontractors. Project managers
carry out annual assessment on the performance of the
fabrication plants and keep all records of review and assessment.
Subcontractors are also required to rectify works that are below
the required standards and report to project managers.
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Quality Control

Our quality management system is implemented in various stages
of our projects from procurement of materials to the installation
phase.

o Procurement Phase
We maintain a list of approved suppliers, which is reviewed
by our project team and procurement team on an annual
basis. We arrange for regular visits to the fabrication and
processing factories of our suppliers to conduct inspections
and quality checks to the fabrication process to ensure the
quality of the materials supplied to us.

Our quality control staff will inspect the fabricated and
processed materials produced by our suppliers on a regular
basis, and if any problems are found, our quality control
staff will work with the suppliers promptly to resolve the
problem, in order to ensure that the fabricated/processed
materials meet the requisite quality standards.

o Installation Phase
We impose strict quality control standards and
closely monitor the quality of the workmanship of our
subcontractors. We generally only engage subcontractors
on our approved list of subcontractors. For details,
please refer to the section headed in “B5. Supply Chain
Management” in this ESG Report.

In respect of subcontractors for installation works, we will
have regular site visits to monitor the subcontractors’ works
at the construction sites. Our project management team
have regular meetings with our subcontractors to address
and resolve material issues such as quality issues, to ensure
the works can meet the requirements of our customers.

We undertake various tests, such as tests on building
materials and fabricated/processed materials, tool
calibration tests, and tests on design performance and
installation, during and after installation of facade works
and building metal finishing works to ensure the project
meets the required quality standards and standards
required by our customers.
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Complaint Handling

Project Team and Commercial Team are responsible for
managing daily operations and commercial issues of our
projects. Internal control mechanism and terms of performance
indicator are clearly stated and included in the agreement with
the customer. We will obtain feedback from our customers upon
completion of the projects to identify areas for improvement. We
strive to improve our quality of work and the satisfaction level of

our customers.

According to our Conflict Management Policy, we have a
complaint handling procedure in place, whereby upon the
receipt of a complaint, a project manager will be assigned to
investigate and communicate with the customer to find ways to
solve the problem within three working days. All details of the
complaint should be recorded on the Client Conflict and Dispute
Report. Corrective, improvement and preventive actions are then
taken to ensure appropriate actions will be undertaken to the
satisfaction of our customers. Senior project manager, tender
and procurement manager, or even the Board of Directors may
involve depending on the nature, scope, complexity and impact
of the issue.

No material complaints or demand for compensation from our
customers were received by us during the Reporting Period in
relation to any deductions, withholding, counter-claim or set-
off due to the quality issues in relation to the work performed by
us or by our subcontractors. When the project is in progress, we
will also conduct regular meetings to review our performance,
to handle any complaints received and to discuss if any
improvement that needs to be enacted immediately.

Intellectual Property

The Group's business does not involve research and
development activities. Nonetheless, the Group has implemented
a Copyright Policy to (a) iterate our denouncement of the use
of any unlicensed software or unlicensed copyrighted works; (b)
impose individualised passwords to each of our computers to
prevent and trace any use of unlicensed software or unlicensed
copyrighted works; and (c) establish different measures to
regulate the authorised usage of computers. All current and
future employees of our Group must sign an acknowledgement
of such Policy upon their employment.
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Marketing and Labelling

The Group does not rely heavily on marketing and advertising
and does not sell products. To the best of our Directors’
knowledge, the Group was not aware of any significant impact
relating to advertising and labelling on its operations. We
will closely monitor the business environment to identify any
significant risks in this area.

Protection of Employee’s and Client’s Privacy and Information
The Group strives to protect the privacy of its customers,
business partners and employees in the collection, processing
and use of their business or personal data. As stated in our
Employee Handbook, all employees are obliged to protect our
commercial and technical sensitive materials, and if they violate
the confidentiality policies, they will be prosecuted in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations.

The production, sending, receiving, transmitting, using,
copying, excerpting, storing and destroying of information are
all carried out by designated personnel depending on the level
of confidentiality of information. If an employee finds that the
confidential materials has been leaked or may be leaked, he or
she should immediately take remedial measures and promptly
report to the company supervisor. In addition, confidential
agreements are required to be signed with relevant parties where
applicable.

Compliance Information

The Group strictly abides the laws and regulations relating to
product responsibility, including but not limited to Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). During the Reporting Period, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, the Group was not aware of any significant non-
compliance case in this regard.

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B HEgRERERE

TS HERER

AEEY TN +DERBETHERERES
MAY T EEERER - BEEHA
AEBEY TABHEEAEMERSE R
BRERABNEATE - RASTIESR
BERRE - LB B R A E AR

% -
REEAREFHEREN

EEE RENMEAER  EBBHK
EENBERBEABER  AEEIBS
RERSHLE - HEEFMAE - 2
1R B W BRER IR X Rk
BR - MERREBEE - KFKRENA
BEDI FOEIRBARIE o

BEABRRBEENRERE
B BX - EW - B EH - ER
sk FEMRERER - MEEHERRE
FEMEDRIRKATRED RIF - RIEZ
BIERER A R pE L BN S 1) 2 ) = B 8]
& o WA - AR IRREEREET 4977 (WE
R)BEERE W -

BEREH
AEBERETHERETEBIER
KER - BRETRNEAER (FLE)
GBI (FBEDFE486F ) R HRIE 551 )
(BBAPIES28E) - RIEHIFE - BE
ERTA - AEES MU B EAE
RIEREMF -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERERS

B7.

Anti-corruption

Honesty, integrity and fair competition are the core values that all
employees of the Group should uphold. The Group’s Employee
Handbook sets out the employee’s codes of conduct in dealing
with matters related to acceptance of advantages and conflicts
of interests and is communicated to all employees. To avoid
any conflict of interest, employees or other related parties are
required to sign the Declaration of Conflict of Interest. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has arranged an anti-corruption
talk for its Directors and employees to refresh existing staff
and new staff on anti-corruption practice and relevant laws and
regulations. All Executive Directors and most of our employees
have attended the talk.

Policies

Our commitments and values are guided by the Employee
Handbook and supplemented by different policies and
procedures. These policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to ensure appropriate ethical business
practices and behaviour as well as compliance with corporate
and regulatory requirements. Our Employee Handbook sets out
principles for acting responsibly in the daily operation, including
issues related to business ethics, conflicts of interest, and bribery
in the workplace. Our Anti-fraud Policy and Anti-corruption
Policy set out our management approaches on anti-frauds and
anti-corruption. It provides the guidelines on implementation,
treatment, and identification of frauds and corruption.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group sets up a mechanism allowing the employees to
report any malpractices existing in the Group to the Audit
Committee under the condition of confidentiality and maps out
the investigation procedure. The Group encourages employees
to call attention to any alleged misconduct or delinquency
occurring in the Group. The Group guarantees that whistle-
blower will be protected from unjust disciplinary action or harm as
a result of any valid report.

The Board and the Audit Committee have the responsibility
to monitor and review the implementation of the Policy and to
advise on investigations into reported cases. The report can be
submitted in writing or email. All reported cases are promptly
and thoroughly investigated while confidentiality is respected
to protect individuals. If the report exposes alleged criminal
offences, the case will be consulted with the legal advisor to
decide whether to refer the case to competent authorities.
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Compliance Information

The Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in Hong Kong,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). During the Reporting Period, to the best of
our Directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware of any cases
of significant non-compliance or related corruption litigation in
this regard. There was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or our employees.

Community

BS.

Community Investment

Policies

The Group believes that community contribution is important for
sustainable development as it helps to establish a harmonious
society. The Group aims to develop long-term relations with
stakeholders based on mutual trust, respect and integrity.
The Group also seeks to make contributions to programmes
which have positive impacts on different areas of community
development (such as art, youth education and social needs).
Employees are encouraged to volunteer and work through
collaboration with strategic giving as well as capacity-building
initiatives to try and create positive impacts in the community.

During the Reporting Period, the Group organised a beach
clean-up activity with 19 employees taken part and have
contributed a total of 38 hours to the activity. The Group also
participated in the “Community Chest — Walk for Millions 2022"
and 28 employees have participated in the event. The Group's
sponsorship amounted to approximately HK$123,000 in total, for
the purpose of supporting sports development and low-income
families in Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WA R E

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lotus
Horizon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 183,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are matter those that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
RRETEE

BARETEE G

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMHEFtOMEERARETER

Recognition of revenue from the provision of design, supply and installation services for facade works and

building metal finishing works

BEXRARPIMEIRREZESBHE TRORG - HERZERBHWE

We identified the recognition of revenue from the
provision of design, supply and installation services for
facade works and building metal finishing works as a
key audit matter due to their significance to the Group's
consolidated financial statements and involvement
of significant management estimates in determining
estimated outcomes of the respective construction
contracts.
BRPIEEAKRERMIME LI N ERSBHE LIRS OR
At R TR RGO KEEN REREFFE - DARE
Y EEENGEMBHRRAMEBEN  ARNETEARE
BRI BRI R ERNERE GG -

The Group recognised revenue from provision of design,
supply and installation services for facade works and
building metal finishing works to customers in Hong Kong
of HK$190,621,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023 as
set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
MR E M BEBRRMASHE - RBE-_T_=F=A
=t—BLEFE ESEHEIAXREFTEFSHNREMIME
ITiehEEcEHm LIERT  HERZERBEHKE
190,621,000/ 7T °

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognises revenue from provision
of design, supply and installation services for facade works
and building metal finishing works progressively over
time using input method based on the proportion of total
contract costs incurred at the end of reporting period
compared to the estimated total budgeted contract costs
to complete the contract. Since the measurement of the
revenue relies on estimations of total budgeted contract
costs, changes to estimated total budgeted contract costs
could give rise to material variances in the amount of
revenue recognised.

e WIS RRMI AR EE - ESEEARAERERS
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Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
from the provision of design, supply and installation
services for facade works and building metal finishing
works included:

BFIEAERRBIRHIME TR REESBHE TIRAR
it R R KRG H WS 81

o Understanding how the management of the Group
recognised the revenue from provision of design,
supply and installation services for facade works
and building metal finishing works over time using
input method and estimated the total budgeted
contract costs;

TR BEEEERENAEREAERERFRERK
BiRfIME TR R ERES B E TI2HRT - HE

REERE G ARG EE A R AR
L
° Understanding the progress of construction

services by discussing with project-in-charges and
management of the Group about the completion
status and billing status of the contracts on a
sample basis;

BEMERE EXEEBEAEAEAREERERSLON
TRERMFERBRET® - 7 REREREHE
BRI

J Checking the estimated total budgeted revenue
by agreeing the total contract values to respective
signed contracts and assessing the recognition
of significant variation orders recognised by
management of the Group by examining against
the payment certificates or correspondence issued
by or with customers on a sample basis;
BBENREERBMEINSAETLYS v
BENEEREARE  TRAMEREE,EL
N FRE S EEFRE R - 5HE EEEE
BEERNERNTREZTRSHERITN ;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
RRETEE

BARETEE G

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMHEFtOMEEARETER

Recognition of revenue from the provision of design, supply and installation services for facade works and

building metal finishing works (Continued)

BRARARERIMMIEREESEHE TRORT - HERZERB L WS (E)

Checking the estimated total budgeted contract
costs against the supporting documents, including
subcontracting service agreements, purchasing
agreements or quotations, payment certificates or
invoices issued by subcontractors or suppliers of
materials, of respective construction projects, on a
sample basis;

HREZERBENDERBHE  REHHIR
B NREEXD BRI ERRANERS
BAXM - MRS A TAE SRR

Assessing the accuracy of the actual contract costs

incurred during the year by examining against

the payment certificates or invoices issued by

subcontractors or suppliers of materials, on a

sample basis; and

Lﬂﬁéﬁm BRERD BB R AN
C MERHEFRAEENERAOKA &

Evaluating the reasonableness of project-in-
charges and management of the Group making
material revisions to estimated margins of
respective construction projects, by comparing
current year's budget against the last year's budget
or actual costs incurred for major subcontractors or
suppliers of materials, on a sample basis.
BRHEEBRAFERER LFEREXTENE
MR ERKA - HE EREEEA
BEANMEIEEYHEMREREENEFAERELE
REHHSIRNE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminated
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 A

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEREERkEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E_=HF B _F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bo5E FET FHET
Revenue Was 5 190,621 223,991
Cost of sales THERKA (177,802) (221,518)
Gross profit EA 12,819 2,473
Other income, gains and losses, net HapA - W kgt F 8 6 1,584 508
Net impairment losses reversed EHEEFREXAE THERR
(recognised) under expected credit (FER ) REEE 58
loss model 7 627 (6,492)
Operating and administrative expenses A% & R1THEF X (21,828) (22,360)
Finance costs BB R AR (1,311) (729)
Loss before taxation BrELAIEIE 9 (8,109) (26,600)
Income tax credit TS % 11 7 3,944
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ FABEREFHEMAZ R
for the year (8,102) (22,656)
Loss per share, basic (HK cents) SRR EAREEGE) 13 (0.41) (1.13)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A PR R

At 31 March 2023 R-Z-_=%=H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=HF B _F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BosE FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment EIE S 14 8,320 11,645
Deposit and prepayment for a life ASREBROIZRE RIARNKIEA
insurance policy 15 2,923 2,290
Rental deposits HERS 16 728 743
Deferred tax assets EETRIRE 2= 23 4,287 4,280
16,258 18,958
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables g5 hEMEWEIE 16 16,520 26,497
Contract assets BHEE 17 79,295 72,819
Tax recoverable AU EI R IR 518 518
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 19 3,000 10,776
Bank balances and cash RITER MRS 19 56,254 46,120
155,587 156,730
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERFRIE 20 12,956 14,647
Contract liabilities BHAEE 17 943 695
Lease liabilities HEAE 21 2,328 2,361
Bank borrowings SRITIER 22 28,788 21,009
45,015 38,712
Net current assets REBEEZE 110,572 118,018
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 126,830 136,976
Non-current liabilities IRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 3,619 5,663
Other payables EH bR FRIB 20 750 750
4,369 6,413
Net assets EEFE 122,461 130,563
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital [N 24 20,000 20,000
Reserves it 102,461 110,563
Total equity EHAH 122,461 130,563

FIEIBENGEVBREABAEFTEN _-F
“=FARNAZ T N\BHUERRERE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 183 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
June 2023.

CHU KWOK FUN TSANG CHIU WAN

REIE =L
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

Share Share Other  Retained
capital  premium reserve profits Total
BA  ROEE HMREE  REEF Ly
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET THEIT FET
(Note)
(Bf=E)
At 1 April 2021 RZZE-—FMA—H 20,000 79,219 10,000 64,000 173,219
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREERZHM T B
expense for the year - - - (22,656) (22,656)
Dividends recognised as R R KA S
distribution (note 12) (PffEE12) - - - (20,000) (20,000)
At 31 March 2022 N-ZE-——&F=H
=+—H 20,000 79,219 10,000 21,344 130,563
Loss and total comprehensive  F NEE &k 2 HF 2 4858
expense for the year - - - (8,102 (8,102)
At 31 March 2023 R-ZT-=F=H
=t+—H 20,000 79,219 10,000 13,242 122,461

Note: Other reserve represented the difference between the share capital of the Company
issued as consideration of acquiring ICGL Technical Works (HK) Limited (“ICGL
Hong Kong”) and issued share capital of ICGL Hong Kong on 27 March 2019
pursuant to a group reorganisation.

MiEE : EfbREEIEAARERIEELEEE(BE)BRAR
(LB &R DOREMEITHRAELZETER -F
—NFE=A-tEARBEEEEMBEITHRAN ZH

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
Operating activities KEEE
Loss before taxation BRI ARSI (8,109) (26,600)
Adjustments for: HE
Interest income MEMA (124) (148)
Finance costs &R AR 1,311 729
Depreciation on property and equipment MENRETE 3,589 3,699
Gain arising from early termination of a RAMR A ES NEENRE
lease contract (1) -
Guaranteed income from a life insurance ASRBRF S S
policy (240) (92)
Net impairment losses (reversed) TEHREEEBRREXIE T (B &E)
recognised under expected credit HERRE S 1R RE
loss model (627) 6,492
Provision for an onerous contract —(EABEA RE 272 -
Operating cash flows before movements HEEPHAINKEERERE
in working capital (3,929) (15,920)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 NREMpER R IER A (32 00)
receivables 10,294 (6,272)
(Increase) decrease in contract assets BHEE GG RD (6,166) 902
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K& E At JE TR IE R (2,000) (5,983)
Increase in contract liabilities SRBEEN 248 57
Net cash used in operating activities KRBT AIR S FEE (1,553) (27,216)
Investing activities KEEH
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits BB EFRITER 7,776 7,712
Interest received BHFE 124 148
Refund of rental deposits REWRERS 15 -
Purchases of property and equipment BEMEREE (69) (102)
Payment of a life insurance contract ANERBAE LR (393) (393)
Payment of rental deposits HEZRS MR = (15)
Net cash from investing activities REEBMERSFE 7,453 7,350
Financing activities MEED
New bank borrowings raised EEEMIRITER 84,847 66,345
Repayments of bank borrowings EBIRITER (77,068) (50,225)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEMHERE (2,271) (2,295)
Interest paid ERFE (1,274) (749)
Dividend paid B E = (20,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities ~ BYE EBNATIS (FTA )RS F58 4,234 (6,924)

BHERERERRR / —E_ZFFR



100

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HMERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash ReRBE&EEBYEMORL)F5E
equivalents 10,134 (26,790)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#i& LIRS EEY
the year 46,120 72,910
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, £ R & MIRSFEY - KERRITER
representing bank balances and cash MEe 56,254 46,120
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Lotus Horizon Holdings Limited (the "Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 14 November 2018 and
its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the Company’s registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” to the annual report.

Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Platinum Lotus
Holdings Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company is Mr. Chu Kwok Fun (“Mr. Chu”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are the provision of design, supply
and installation services for facade works and building metal
finishing works.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

—REH

BREREZEBRARAR(AAT NN
- \F+-ATHEREFEHESE
228 RN RNARF 2 B B EM A &
A AE#ReERAE - HROHERE
BMERXSMAR LA ([HBARRA]) TR E
me ARAEMPEREARRLTES
FEMER U F N F R AETER o

HEZ RS&IZER A APlatinum Lotus
Holdings Limited ' 2 A Rl /AR EE# R
RES([XBARRES ) aMmusy
BRAF - AARMRKIERIRR AR
BIESEAE([REE]) -

RRABERBREEZEBRARTE  MAR
AMEMBAR (SR AREDNEE
EBRRMIMETIZNEESBHE T
RHRRAT » B R KRS -

BB HRRAETT(TEBITI)Z25] >
BILMABARRRINNEEE

BHERERERRR / —E_ZFFR

101

\§\ %



102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual periods
beginning on 1 April 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts'
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
"Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements”
(the "Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group's significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group's future consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 "“Definition of Accounting Estimates”

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such items
to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be observed
directly and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set
out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on the
latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods and

services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if the market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” ("HKFRS 16"”), and measurement that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 and 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follow:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset and liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue in recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’'s performance as the entity
performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FEVBRRNEREER T
BB @)

EREHBRE)

REAREE(E)

RE BT B N BRI R E R ia
(B A RERA AR RIERKH B AR
HRER AR IEAR - BBME - RFR
PR Bk B B B R By U R B I
AEBEESEGEARSAGREERER
Hp2mERER - BEANSE T BIES
ZMB AR BRI

KRB - SUHE AR M BmRIE
HAHE  UEHESHRREARNEENS

SR -

BRAASEXRERBZHEARZNAASE
BAREENAE  #m - BA - FAXR

BeRnEania AR 28 -

RAEFSOHLE
REER(RHEEZ) EREOE LHER
W3 RS EEOECABNER N
RIS HOT 50 [T B -

BB EREEBEFNE MRS (HE R
HRBAS) AABERN —ERBFHE
kAR

W& THIEP —IHRE - ARG E
—BREBAER  MEag2E0 K
MHRE QR ERERERN — B R RER -

° gﬁ%?ﬁ%%%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%&{iﬁﬁ
BB PR T ¢

o ZAKERENAIEIIG R —TENAE
BEARHEFPEHNEE 3

. REEMEOLEAEAEETIE
HipMAMEE  BASEHES
SR A A T I3 iR
ik



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer. The Group recognises revenue when
it transfers control of service to a customer. The Group’s major
source of revenue is its revenue from construction contracts for
the provision of design, supply and installation services for facade
works and building metal finishing works.

Provision of design, supply and installation services for facade
works and building metal finishing works

Recognition — over time revenue recognition

The Group provides design, supply and installation services
for facade works and building metal finishing works based on
contracts entered with the customers. Such contracts are entered
into before the services begin. Revenue from the provision of
design, supply and installation services for facade works and
building metal finishing works is recognised over time because
the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs and the Group's performance
are tailor-made based on customer’s specification which does
not create an asset with an alternative use and the Group is
restricted from redirecting the facade works and building metal
finishing works to another customer, and all the contracts provide
the Group an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to the date taking into account the contractual terms.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services. The management of
the Group has assessed that the stage of completion determined
as the proportion of the costs incurred for the facade works
and building metal finishing works performed to date (i.e.
subcontracting costs, materials costs and direct staff costs
incurred) relative to the estimated total budgeted contract costs
to complete the satisfaction of these services in each contract
and the margin of each contract, to the extent that the amount
can be measured reliably and its recovery is considered probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Provision of design, supply and installation services for facade
works and building metal finishing works (Continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (i.e. variation
order), the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using either (a) the expected value method or
(b) the most likely amount, depending on which method better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that
such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal
in the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment
of whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the change in circumstances during the
reporting period.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Groups’ unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Provision of design, supply and installation services for facade
works and building metal finishing works (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group completes the
facade works and building metal finishing works under such
services contracts but yet certified by architects, surveyors
or other representatives appointed by customers, or (ii) the
customers retain retention money to secure the due performance
of the contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it
is invoiced to the customer and becomes unconditional. If the
considerations (including advances received from customers)
exceeds the revenue recognised to date under the input method
then the Group recognises a contract liability for the difference.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Warranties

If a customer does not have the options to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” unless the warranty provides the customer with a service
in addition to the assurance that the product complies with
agreed-upon specification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE=ZZT—=—=

3.

R RS E

F=RA=1t—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that are held for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using
straight line method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are not capitalised to qualifying assets
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable and are presented under
"other income, gains and losses, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original
condition, as required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease at
the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed
and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is
considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect
the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower
of the net cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All of the Group's financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets and other item
(including trade and other receivables, refundable rental
deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and contract
assets) which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“"HKFRS 9”). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group'’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=ZT-_=-F=-H=+—HItFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit ratings;

J significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

J existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE=ZZT—=—=

3.

R RS E

F=RA=1t—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property and equipment (including right-of-
use assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment (including right-
of-use assets) to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property and equipment (including right-of-
use assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 "Income Taxes” requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the
same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in term of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, as recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expect to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantee;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease

if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments as
a result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the
Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure the lease
liabilities by discounting the revised lease payments using the
unchanged discount rate and makes a corresponding adjustment
to the related right-of-use assets. A lease modification is required
by interest rate benchmark reform if, and only if, both of these
conditions are met:

° the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis
immediately preceding the modification).

If lease modifications are made in addition to those lease
modifications required by interest rate benchmark reform, the
Group applies the applicable requirements in HKFRS 16 (see the
accounting policy above) to account for all lease modifications
made at the same time, including those required by interest rate
benchmark reform.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong as defined contribution plan are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange of the related services.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by the employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the carrying amount of the
liabilities resulting from remeasurement or interests are
recognised in profit or loss.

Termination benefits

A liability for termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

FEVBRRNEREER T
BB @)

EREHBERE)

EHEEREF

RHE B RANNE B REREE LA
B RAEAREBR S RER - AR
HREBRMNERRFAX  RIES—FE
R 75 o & ZE Rl SRk L RS B R AR I A
ANBERARRNER I

RMBREFAEN SRR  BREESNE
MGIATE -~ FehFR)ERRAE -

AR B RN ERN B EEIRAH
RIS TRHS (T OB AR ARITIR ARG & -

mEMEAEERNERNRE - KA
EREAANKEESREHRORBE AN
EENAFRRBEZRHNRETE -
REFAERNEEHNEEREEE
MR BT AR

HIEEF
RASETAHERERANEZOIR
BREMHBEARAR (AREER
%) RIPEN R RALE

BHERERERRR / —E_ZFFR

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of cash flows include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term deposits
(generally with original maturity of three months or less).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Recognition of revenue from the provision of design,
supply and installation services for facade works and
building metal finishing works

The Group recognises revenue from the provision of design,
supply and installation services for facade works and building
metal finishing works progressively over time using input method
based on the proportion of total contract costs incurred at
the end of reporting period compared to the estimated total
budgeted contract costs to complete the contract when control
of the goods or service is transferred to the customer. The Group
reviews and revises the estimated total budgeted contract costs
to complete the satisfaction of these services and the margin of
each project as the contract progresses. Budgeted contract costs
are prepared by the management of the Group on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the subcontractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the
management of the Group. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, management of the Group conducts periodic
reviews and revisions of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Since
the measurement of the revenue relies on estimations of total
budgeted contract costs, changes to estimated total budgeted
contract costs could give rise to material variances in the amount
of revenue recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group generated
revenue of HK$190,621,000 (2022: HK$223,991,000) from the
provision of design, supply and installation services for facade
works and building metal finishing works.
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4,

R RS E

F=RA=1t—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of loss
allowances for ECL on the trade receivables and contract
assets individually based on their credit risk, after considering
the historical default experience and the financial position of
the counterparties, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operate.

When measuring ECL, the Group uses reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Loss given default is an estimate of the loss
arising on default. Probability of default constitutes a key input
in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation
of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations
of future conditions. Therefore, the assessment of the credit risk
of trade receivables and contract assets involves high degree of
estimation and uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or more than expected due to changes
in forward-looking information, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may arise accordingly.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was HK$8,871,000 (2022: HK$20,429,000) (net of loss allowances
of HK$3,356,000 (2022: HK$3,673,000)).

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of contract assets was
HK$79,295,000 (2022: HK$72,819,000) (net of loss allowance of
HK$4,745,000 (2022: HK$5,055,000)).
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5.

R RS e

F=RA=1t—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the provision of design, supply and installation

5. WERDHEHR

WaEAEBEREEMIND T P RAS
H%I%E&L %%ﬁﬁﬁl%im -I— {/\

services for facade works and building metal finishing works ERZERBHEKRREKESEAF
in Hong Kong by the Group to external customers which is B HEEREEAREAEKERRE AR
recognised over time using the input method and derived from FENHRBAEH -
long-term contracts during the year.
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Recognised over time BE R R AR
Design, supply and installation services for A TNEIBRIRET « HER LERSE
— facade works —INE T2 162,650 194,218
— building metal finishing works —RESEMEIE 27,971 29,773
190,621 223,991

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment focusing on the provision of design, supply
and installation services for facade works and building metal
finishing works. This operating segment has been identified
on the basis of internal management reports that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"),
being Mr. Chu, the chief executive officer and executive director
of the Company, for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Other than revenue analysis, no
operating results and other discrete financial information is
available for the assessment of performance.

The CODM reviews the loss for the year of the Group as a whole
to make decisions about resources allocation. No analysis of
segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are
not regularly provided to the CODM. The operation of the
Group constitutes one single operating segment under HKFRS
8 "Operating segments” and accordingly, no separate segment
information other than entity level information is prepared.

The customers of the Group are mainly property developers
and main contractors in Hong Kong. All of the Group's provision
of design, supply and installation services for facade works
and building metal finishing works are made directly with the
customers. Contracts with the Group’s customers are mainly
fixed-price contracts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with customers
The table below shows the aggregate amount of the transaction
price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) as at the end of the reporting period.

WKk oEHER @)

TEEEFANBTENREN
R5E

TRETINBERRDEEEARETT (B
DRBITINENEENR HERRE

2023 2022
—EC-=F - F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Provision of design, supply and installation $2ft5ME TI2 R ERE ¢ & hE T2
services for facade works and building BVERET ~ B R RS
metal finishing works 440,086 355,443

These amounts disclosed above do not include transaction price
allocated to performance obligations which have been satisfied
but not yet recognised due to variable consideration constraint.

Based on the information available to the Group at the end of
the reporting period, the management of the Group expects the
transaction price allocated to the above unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) contracts in respect of provision of design, supply
and installation services for facade works and building metal
finishing works as at 31 March 2023 will be recognised as revenue
during the years ending 31 March 2024 to 31 March 2026 (2022:
years ended/ending 31 March 2023 to 31 March 2025).

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers was
generated from customers located in Hong Kong and all of
the Group's non-current assets (excluding rental deposits and
deferred tax assets) were located in Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZZZT—

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

=F=A=t—RLFE

W koPER @)

Information about major customers FRIEEZEFNEHR
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of R SR B B B R 2 55 B A2 a2 10%
the total revenue of the Group during the year are as follows: WEPEEMKELNT
2023 2022
—EC-=F —EToF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET T
Customer A’ EEA 59,181 N/ATE
Customer B’ EFB! 45,168 53,108
Customer C' ®EC 38,867 N/ATE
Customer D? BFED? 23,922 39,917
Customer E! ZFPE N/ATER?3 32,462
Customer F2 BPF N/ATER?3 23,081
Notes: BEE -
1. Revenue from design, supply and installation services for facade works. 1. RESMETIZHRET - HERTRERBOUE
2. Revenue from design, supply and installation services for facade works and 2. REIME IR RBES BEE T Ra - HE
building metal finishing works. Rz R
3. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue 3. AN RTEEHEBAEENGHFEH

of the Group for the relevant year.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

W Z5#910% °

H A - s Rk EEFEE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —EFF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Other income HAUg A
Bank interest income HRITHFBHA 124 148
Government grants (Note) BB (PE) 1,227 -
Guaranteed income from a life insurance ~ AFREBR B
policy 240 92
Sundry income FETEWA 6 268
1,597 508
Other gains and losses, net Hithg 2 R 51875788
Exchange loss i 5 &5 18 (14) -
Gain arising from early termination of a RAKZIEAES W FTEE KR
lease contract 1 -
(13) -
1,584 508

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group received government
grants of HK$1,227,000 (2022: Nil) under the Employment Support Scheme

provided by the Hong Kong government.

Mk : RBE-_TE-_=F=A=+—HIFE XK
EERMEBRTRENMRREIFTETH
ERAFHEEN1,227, 0008 TL( Z T =246 « £) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &

7.

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES REVERSED
(RECOGNISED) UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT

=F=A=t—RLFE

7. FHEEEEENE NN
Bl (FeR) BEE R F

LOSS MODEL
2023 2022
—E-=F —E_F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net impairment losses reversed FLATHIRERE (FER) HIRIE
(recognised) on: SRR -
— trade receivables —E S EIFE 317 (3,379
— contract assets —EHEE 310 (3,113)
627 (6,492)
FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMRA
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-_F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interests on: AT EIEMFE
— bank borrowings —RITER 979 306
— lease liabilities —-HERE 332 423
1,311 729
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BR¥ATEE
2023 2022
—EC=F —E-F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T

Loss before taxation has been arrived at ~ BRFBIEECDINBRIATSIE ¢
after charging:

Directors’ remunerations (note 10) FEHM(HFE10)
Fee e 540 540
Other emoluments E e 4,268 4,374
4,808 4,914
Other staff costs HAh B TpA
Salaries and other benefits e M E AR 25,764 28,825
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  EAth & TiRIKEFIFT 2R
for other staffs 789 918
Total staff costs 8 TR A 4% 31,361 34,657
Auditor’s remuneration 2 S B 1,080 1,080
Variable rents in respect of office AT AHEBENM R EREAIE
equipment which are not included e ()
in lease liabilities (Note) 29 56
Depreciation on property and equipment  ¥)3 N EITE 3,589 3,699
and after crediting: MEFTA:
Guaranteed income from a life insurance  AZRBIRZE U
policy 240 92
Note: The operating lease rentals for office equipment are determined according Mist: PAERBEHEEHEESDRERALETE
to predetermined fixed cost and the excess usage of printing pages pursuant B [E 7 AR BLAR TR B W s R BT IR R
to terms and conditions that are set out in respective rental agreements. TR T RBREE RSN A 8ETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZZ=ZT—

=F=A=t—RLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a)

emoluments

Directors’, chief executive officer's and employees’

Details of the emoluments paid or payable by the Group
to the directors of the Company and the chief executive
officer of the Group (including emoluments for services as
employees or directors of the Group) during the year are as

10. %ﬁ - BREITBRABRERN
(a) HE BETHABRESN
B

REAXREBEENHENARFE
ERAEBERFITERA BB
(BREIAEEREHEETNS
BB -

follows:
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme
Fees allowances payments  contributions Total
ek xEHN RIER
ik Hitn2eh REAR FEIfER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
AT TAT TAT TAT TAT
(Note)
(F3E)
Year ended 31 March 2023 EHZE-ZT=-=£=#
St-HLEE
Executive directors: HIEE:
Mr. Chu REE(THER)
(Chief executive officer) - 1,944 810 18 2,772
Mr. Tsang Chiu Wan pmarE(BEE])

("Mr. Tsang") - 1,267 211 18 1,496
Sub-total gt - 3211 1,021 36 4,268
Independent non-executive B IFHITESE :

directors:

Ms. Leung Yin Fai ZRELT 180 - - - 180

Mr. Ma Tsz Chun BRHRLE 180 - - - 180

Ms. Yuen Wai Yee REGENT 180 - - - 180
Sub-total Et 540 = = = 540
Total fazt 540 3,211 1,021 36 4,808
Year ended 31 March 2022 HZ=-Z=-=%=A

=+-ALEE

Executive directors: HIEE

Mr. Chu REE(ITHER)

(Chief executive officer) - 1,944 810 18 2,772

Mr. Tsang @Rt - 1,267 317 18 1,602
Sub-total N - 3,211 1,127 3 4,374
Independent non-executive B IFHITESE :

directors:

Ms. Leung Yin Fai PEELL 180 - - - 180

Mr. Ma Tsz Chun BSEHRLE 180 - - - 180

Ms. Yuen Wai Yee REGENT 180 - - - 180
Sub-total NG 540 - - - 540
Total @it 540 3,211 1,127 3 4914

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined based
on the performance of the individuals and the Group and market

condition for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’, chief executive officer’s and employees’
emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Chu was appointed as the chief executive officer and
executive director of the Company and his emoluments
above include those for services rendered by him as a chief
executive officer.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals include two (2022: two)
directors of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2023, details of whose emoluments are included above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three)
highest paid individuals who are neither a director nor chief
executive officer of the Company are as follows:

10. E% - RETBRAEBRESHN

£ (€]

(a) BEE BETBABRESN
(@)
FERAIRMITE SN RS
REEAN T RAEMEHIREN
FRISHERE © F X FTIRB S IEITE
ENHMABSEIAATESR
1REEMIRES -

RAEEBZERRRBWITRARE
RYITES  HLlFHMEeERE
RITHBEFTREIRENME -

(b) EEFHM

BE-_ZT-_=F=A=+—HItHF
E - AEmaTMA LS BEER
H(ZEZZF - WA)ARAE
E EBREEFHOFEBEIN L
X oM N=ZR(ZEZZF : =4)
BEFMAL(LIIERAATESL
SRTBRAB)MBEIT -

2023 2022

—E_=F -4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET AT

Salaries and other allowances e RHAMERL 2,631 2,523
Performance related incentive FIREMIRE R (FEE)

payments (Note) 437 911

Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIET B
contributions 54 54
3,122 3,488

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined based
on the performance of the individuals and the Group and market
condition for both years.

MR - RITEBEBMFAR BN EFED
BARAEERRARTIGRNEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

10. EE - RETHAEBREEN
£ (€]

Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEFM(E)

The emoluments of remaining highest paid individuals who
are not directors of the Company were within the following
band:

BTLFEARBEZTNRSTMA
THFMEE LT

Number of individuals

AEL
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 702 1,500,000 7T 2 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees), as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors of the Company nor the chief
executive officer of the Group waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments for both years.

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AEERENARTESTRELR
SHEMAL(BEESEIES)N
TS - FRRSIEMAREE
K A0 A 12 1O 52 8 3K 1 7 B B A 12
Z - RMRAEFE MELARRES
SAEEEETRABHESLRE
MEEAME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZZZT—

=F=A=t—RLFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. FifSHiiER
2023 2022
—EC-=F o F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
The income tax credit comprises: FriSHiii e eiE
Overprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax BT FEH B MG B EE
in prior years = 42
Deferred tax credit (note 23) RIETR A % (M FE23) 3,902
3,944
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong Kong, the BEEBMNESHMAS  —HEER

first HK$2,000,000 of profits of one qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 of that qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 16.5%. Accordingly, Hong Kong

Profits Tax of the qualifying entity is calculated in accordance with

the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The profits of other group

entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax

rates regime continue to be taxed at the fl

at rate of 16.5%.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss

before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

& B F 2 % F #9 & 2,000,000 7 7T 5 i
8.25% T M - MzE B REEERE
2,000,000/ 7T JA _E B9 Tl #5452 16.5% K9 B
KT o B AEREENEENE
RIREFERMAFTE - T8ERE
HFSHMRGNESEMEEERE
BB B — TR R 16 S%BMFIGH -

AEEMEHRESREGEEREMW
PEBERATHIBRTATBBEERNAT ¢

2023 2022

—BCD=HF —T-=F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

TET FHET

Loss before taxation BrELAIETIE (8,109) (26,600)

Tax credit at the applicable income tax RERAMETHE16.5% 51

rate at 16.5% TRIBE % (1,338) (4,389)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A HIFE L TR S R/ 2

tax purpose 386 493
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax DA A R RIS E

purpose (235) (29)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTBEB VBT E 1,147 -

Overprovision in prior years BT ERERE = (42)

Others HAtb 33 23

Income tax credit for the year FRMGETHESR (7) (3,944)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &

12.

13.

R RS E

B2-FE =

F=RA=1t—HILFE

DIVIDENDS 12. BRE
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Dividends recognised as distribution RENER DD IRIARE
during the year:
Final dividend paid for 2022 of Nil E‘ﬁ:’—;’fiiixﬁﬁmiﬁﬁﬂﬁ BT
(2022: final dividend paid for 2021 of —TCCF BT —FIRN
HK cent 1.0 per share) KRR B A1 .08 L) - 20,000

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2023.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the following

13. BREE

ARAEERTRBRARE-T==

FZA=T—BLEFEORPRSE -

BREAREERATEIERH ¢

data:
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Loss: 518 -
Loss for the year for the purpose of AT ESREREENFAEE
calculating basic loss per share (8,102) (22,656)
‘000 ‘000
T8 Fix
Number of shares: AR EL
Weighted average number of ordinary  BtErE GAREAE IR E AR N
shares for the purpose of calculating T
basic loss per share 2,000,000 2,000,000
No diluted loss per share is presented as the Group has no MEFEREDSFITER

potential ordinary shares in issue during both years.

HJ#EH—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. YEREE
Right-of-use assets Office
kRRRE equipment
Office Office Leasehold and
equipment premises Sub-total improvements furniture Total
HENE  BAERE
BAERE  MOEME gt &6 R&#H a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR AT

cosT RA
At 1 April 2021 R-Z-—EmA-A 1,331 10878 12,209 4747 1,553 18,509
Additions E 47 174 2 61 i 30
Write-off upon end of lease SR (29) - (29) - - (29)
At 31 March 2022 R-E-—#=A=1-H 1,349 11,052 12401 4,808 1,504 18,803
Additions NE 28 - 28 - 9 337
Early termination of a lease contract 1R ATHIFEAH) - (179) (179) - - (175)
Write-off upon end of lease R REHE (100) - (100) - - (100)
At 31 March 2023 R-E-=#=A=1-H 1517 10877 12394 4,808 1663 18,865
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—#mA-A 269 1,604 1873 732 883 3468
Provided for the year EREE 300 228 2528 953 218 369
Eliminated on write-offuponend TR I E13H

of lease 29 - 29 - - 29
At 31 March 2022 RZE-ZF=A=+-H 540 3832 4372 1,685 1,101 7,158
Provided for the year EnEE 255 2,154 2,409 92 218 3589
Early termination of a lease contract RIS EHEA ) - (102) (102) - - (102)
Eliminated on write-offuponend TR MHE 45

of lease (100) - (100) - - (100
At 31 March 2023 RZE-=F=A=1-H 695 5,884 6,579 2,647 1319 10,545
CARRYING VALUES RAG
At 31 March 2023 RZE-=F=A=+-H 822 4993 5815 2,161 34 8,320
At 31 March 2022 RZE--F=A=1-H 809 7,220 8,029 3123 93 11,645
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property
and equipment, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Right-of-use assets Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease

terms or 5 years

14. YPERRE®)
AEBHRITERE  WRBESAR
THIEF R Y% R R EIE B M E R
N

EREEE T
HEMEKE MR SF (ABEE
RE)

Office equipment and furniture ~ 20% MAERE LM 20%
2023 2022
—EC=HF B S
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FAT

Variable lease payments not included Rt AHEAGBFENFAIEHEE

in the measurement of lease liabilities BN 29 56
Total cash outflow for leases HERES ML 2,632 2,774

For both years, the Group leases various office premises and
office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 4 years to 5 years (2022: 2 years to 5 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. YIERREE

Some of the office equipment in which the Group is the lessee
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on excess
usage of printing pages. The variable lease payments depend on
the usage of printing pages for each month of the leased office
equipment. Variable lease payment terms are used to link rental
payments to actual usage of printing pages and to reduce fixed
cost. The amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid/
payable to relevant lessors for the year ended 31 March 2023:

AEBERABANETMAZREY
KAl SHEEMNRIER - BRGRERE
RMEMIINESR - A 2HENFRTHE
EMAEXRBEAIHAEHREME °
A EEEN KGR RNEERE N R R
ERFIENBEZABIREBRTKAE - B
BE_Z-_=F=A=+—HItFE "
BT FEAT AR R AR A B9 ElE R AT # A
SNREBAT

2023 2022
—EC-=F e S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Fixed payments Eha et
— for certain office equipment with — BB E NG eE T
variable payment terms NEHRE 294 334
— for other lease assets —BRHMEEEE 2,309 2,384
2,603 2,718
Variable payments for certain office ATHAERE K
equipment 29 56
2,632 2,774
Restrictions or covenants on leases HENWRFIHZE

Lease liabilities of HK$5,947,000 (2022: HK$8,024,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$5,815,000 (2022:
HK$8,029,000) as at 31 March 2023. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessors. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out
in note 21.

MWZEBEZ_=F=ZA=+—H0 2#R
HEBES59470008T(ZE ==
80240008 T ) HARREE A& E
5,815,000/ 7 ( ZZ = — 4 : 8,029,000/
7T) - BREEARBENEEEETMER
s HEBE T ENEMNRE -
EEENSRAEERENS -

HEBBENHEEDN T FHISENMHE
21 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE=ZZT—=—=

15.

R RS E

F=RA=1t—HILFE

DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENT FOR A LIFE
INSURANCE POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2013, a subsidiary of the
Company entered into a life insurance policy (the “Policy”) to
insure Mr. Chu with effect from 17 June 2013. Under the Policy,
the beneficiary and policy holder is that subsidiary and the total
insured sum is HK$10,000,000. An annual premium of HK$393,000
was paid at the inception of the Policy, and annual premiums
of HK$393,000 shall be paid at the beginning of each Policy’s
anniversary until the 10th anniversary from the date of inception
of the Policy.

At the date of withdrawal or termination of the Policy, the Group
will receive cash refund based on (i) the guaranteed value and
(ii) the non-guaranteed terminal dividend and accumulated
dividends and interest under the policy. The guaranteed value
grows year by year based on the pre-determined rate at the
inception of the Policy. The non-guaranteed value, however,
is calculated based on the Policy’s current dividend/ bonus
scales determined under its current investment return and is not
guaranteed. The actual amount receivable may change from time
to time and, under certain circumstances, the non-guaranteed
value may be zero.

At the date of initial recognition, the directors of the Company
expected that the Policy would not be terminated before the end
of 10th anniversary, which is 16 June 2023 and there will be no
any surrender charge expected.

The Policy exposes the insurer to significant insurance risk. The
premiums paid at the beginning of each Policy’s anniversary
consists of a deposit placed element and a prepayment for life
insurance element. These two elements are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position at the aggregate of
the amount of premiums paid plus interest earned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16. EZ R HMEWRIE

2023 2022
—EC-=F S
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTExT FAT
Trade receivables =) e e 12,227 24,102
Less: Allowances for impairment o ORE R (3,356) (3,673)
8,871 20,429
Rental deposits HEZ® 728 743
Deposits and prepayments e RIANFRIE 7,079 5,455
Other receivables H At EYGRIR 570 613
17,248 27,240
Less: Rental deposits classified as B DERIERBBHNEE

non-current portion e (728) (743)

Current portion of trade and other B 5 REAMEWFIER R EE D
receivables 16,520 26,497

Trade receivables represent amounts receivable for work certified
after deduction of retention money by customers.

The Group usually allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 74
days to its customers. Before accepting any new customers, the
Group will internally assess the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customers. Recoverability of the
existing customers is reviewed by the Group regularly.

As at 1 April 2021, the trade receivables amounted to
HK$17,872,000, net of loss allowances of HK$294,000.

B HRWFIARE REN TR EWKIA
(MEBREFPRERR) °

AEBBTEREPERNFI0E74AAH
FEH - ERBERHEFA - AKE
HEBEEEPNEEERETRMNG
RREFEEFEERE -HBEEXPHA
Y Bl BR SR B I AR AN R B E HAR AT ©

R-ZE-—FmWA—1 - BHSENKZE
17,872,000/ 7T (1B &5 18 #5455 294,000
L) °
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables, net
of loss allowances, presented based on the approval dates of
work certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers, at the end of the reporting period,
which are also the dates when the Group's right to consideration
became unconditional:

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

ESREMBEWRIE S

LT ARBERREESREINRE
GBS MR R RE Y T2
& B EI (TN B A E U A B IR A
®IEM Y B PRS2 EUER (R E
BB ) BRI AT -

2023 2022

—E-=F o F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TET

0 to 30 days 0£30H 7,305 5,254
31 to 60 days 31260H = 834
61 to 90 days 61E290H 1,324 14,335
Over 90 days B30 R 242 6
8,871 20,429

As at 31 March 2023, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,566,000 (2022: HK$15,018,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$6,000
(2022: HK$6,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is not
considered as in default based on repayment records of those
customers and continuous business with the Group.

Trade receivables
Loss allowances for trade receivables have been measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL under simplified approach.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 18.

Otbher receivables (including refundable rental deposits)
For purpose of impairment assessment, other receivables
(including refundable rental deposits) of HK$1,317,000 (2022:
HK$1,356,000) are considered to have low credit risk as they
are not due for payment at the end of the reporting period and
there has been no significant increase in the risk of default on
other receivables since initial recognition. Accordingly, for the
purpose of impairment assessment for these receivables, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12m ECL. For
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed
the ECL for other receivables were insignificant and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZZZT—

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

=F=A=t—RLFE

17. BRNEEREGRNEE

LIABILITIES
2023 2022
—E-=F —EoF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Analysed for reporting purposes, on a net MIMEBH - BHEEEL
basis for each respective contract: SFREEEITON
Contract assets BREE
— facade works —HMETLRE 65,253 68,070
- building metal finishing works —RES B IE 18,787 9,804
84,040 77,874
Less: Allowances for impairment W ORE R
— facade works —SMETAR (4,690) (5,039)
- building metal finishing works —RECEMHEITIE (55) (16)
(4,745) (5,055)
79,295 72,819
Contract assets, net of allowances for SREE(HBRRERE)
impairment
— facade works —HMETAE 60,563 63,031
- building metal finishing works —REeBMEmIR 18,732 9,788
79,295 72,819
Contract liabilities EREE
— facade works — MBI (136) (216)
- building metal finishing works —RESEMHEmIE (807) (479
(943) (695)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (Continued)

17. BHNEEREGHNEE®)

2023 2022
—E—=F —EoF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Analysed on a gross basis for each respective FAREG 4 ABRREEELT
contract: oI
Contract assets BREE
— facade works —HMETLRE 65,925 73,129
- building metal finishing works —RES B IE 19,291 10,526
85,216 83,655
Less: Allowances for impairment W ORER
— facade works —SMETAR (4,690) (5,039)
- building metal finishing works —RECEMHEITIE (55) (16)
(4,745) (5,055)
80,471 78,600
Contract assets, net of allowances for aHEEFIRRERE)
impairment
— facade works —HMETAE 61,235 68,090
- building metal finishing works —BREeBMEIR 19,236 10,510
80,471 78,600
Contract liabilities EREE
— facade works — MBI (808) (5,275)
- building metal finishing works —RESEMHEmIE (1,311) (1,201)
(2,119) (6,476)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 17. BREERENAE®)

\§\ %

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Group has right to consideration
for completion of design, supply and installation of facade works
and building metal finishing works and not yet billed under the
relevant contracts, and its right is conditioned on factors other
than passage of time. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when such right
becomes unconditional other than the passage of time.

In addition, contract assets arise when customers withhold certain
certified amounts payable to the Group as retention money to
secure the due performance of the contracts.

Retention receivables, included in contracts assets, represent the
money withheld by the customers to secure the due performance
of the contracts. The customers normally withhold 10% of the
certified amount payable to the Group as retention money
(accumulated up to maximum 5% of contract sum). 50% of
retention receivable is normally recoverable upon the issuance
of the certificate of practical completion by the architects for
the completion of respective projects. The remaining 50% is
recoverable after the completion of defect liability period of
the relevant contracts or in accordance with the terms specified
in the relevant contracts, ranging from 1 to 2 years from the
date of completion of respective projects. Any amount of
retention receivables previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it becomes
unconditional and is invoiceable to the customer. The retention
money does not have any significant financing component for
financing benefit. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free.

As at 1 April 2021, the contract assets amounted to
HK$77,469,000 on a gross basis for each respective contract,
net of loss allowances of HK$1,942,000, and amounted to
HK$76,834,000 on a net basis for each respective contract, net of
loss allowances of HK$1,942,000, respectively.

BREE

EAKEERMTRIME TRRREES
B E T2 R - HERTRKERR
B maAREABEHLAZER A
HHE I T BRUR 7 B R A DA S O B &=
B ELERNEE - EEBEMNKA
BRI (RRRARIN - AR R
BHEENTNEBEENROELRESRE
WRIE

o BERFPHERNAKENE TS
RECRERRESUERZLERITS
e ELRNEE -

FEUREE (FFAGHNEE) REFPLE
REZEITANMINENRIIE - B —
BHERNAEENEZESRI0%ER
RES(RESERNEREREZ5%) ° &
W iR B & 8950% — MR AT R 2 SLRD Bt AR R IR
BRTHELANERRTERER KD -
#2 T 50% R X AERE A K RIE BITTAIE AR
EHRESHANER(HRAEERTA
HEEFT T 1229 ) [ - ERTER BE
#VE B FE YR B 2 SRR E KR
BEMHRATPHARERENIHEE
B 5 RWFIR - RE S W ETA A ES
BENGMERBREMAKED - ZE 8
REEANEE

WZZBE-—FOB—B  SHEEAHN
BB ENEHEERTT 69,0008
JC(FNBR BB B 1,942,0008 70 ) + A&
AN FREETENANEER
76,834,000 7T (¥0 B B 18 5 451,942,000
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=ZT-_=F=-HA=+—HItFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 17. BREERENAE®)

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Contract assets (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of retention
receivables, included in contract assets, net of loss allowances,

held by customers for contract works amounting to
HK$31,138,000 (2022: HK$28,143,000).

The retention receivables, net of loss allowances, are to be
settled as follows:

BHEEE)
R-ZT-_=F=A=+—0  EWRE
CHEAEREREFRANIERAW
BHEE (B EBREE) A31,138,000%
TT(ZE =4 : 28,143,000/7T) ©

JEHM%IJE(?D FEREE) SR N
_tlui:l

2023 2022

—E-=F B F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET T

On demand or within one year BRERSE—FR 13,025 12,190
After one year —Fi& 18,113 15,953
31,138 28,143

Details of the impairment assessment of contract assets are set
out in note 18.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group's obligation to
transfer project works services to customers for which the Group
has received consideration from the customers in advance. The
contract liabilities as at 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 have
been recognised as revenue for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2023, respectively. The contract liabilities as at 31
March 2023 will be recognised as revenue for the year ending 31
March 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=ZT-_=-F=-H=+—HItFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

. BREEREGHNEE®

Contract liabilities (Continued) EHBEEE)
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TREARBZ VDN AFEERN Y E
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities: RESHEEER
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT
Revenue recognised that was included FFFAZIHBES I ARE
in the contract liabilities balance on a gross ~ EEENAEHABLEHN
basis for each respective contract at the el
beginning of the year 6,476 1,273

Changes of contract assets and contract liabilities during the year
ended 31 March 2023 were mainly due to (i) changes on progress
of contract works when the Group satisfies the performance
obligations under the contracts or when the relevant services
were completed but not yet been certified by architects,
surveyors or other representatives appointed by the customers
at the end of the reporting period; or (i) reclassification to trade
receivables when the Group has unconditional right to the
consideration.

As at 1 April 2021, the contract liabilities amounted to
HK$1,273,000 on a gross basis for each respective contract and
amounted to HK$638,000 on a net basis for each respective
contract, respectively.

RBEZZT-=F=A=1+—HLEFE
WENEERANEEEHNIEERNE
REBBITEHNATRAORERIER
B AR 7S R s IR B A oA B AR B
SEHD - BIEMSEPZENAEMNRRZ
EMEREHNIRERTEE  Li)ER
& B VR A G WK (B 9 R R IR
DEEE PIME -

NZE-_—FHA—H  FHEBEELA
MEEETENESRNAER,273,0007
T ABREBANNFRELFENS
#1 B 16 /5638,000/8 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

18. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENTS OF TRADE
RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group makes periodic
individual assessments on the recover abilities of trade
receivables and contract assets and develops and maintains the
Group's credit risk grading to categorise exposures according
to their degree of risk of default. The credit rating information is
supplied by independent rating agencies where available and, if
not available, the management of the Group uses other publicly
available financial information and the Group’s own trading
records to rate its major customers and other debtors.

18. EZBURHRERENEERE
P fh
ATRBEREEERR  AREERY
B 5 I IHIE R A WA e
TEBIE - AHERRBAEBEE
BB - AR ISR ERIZE ISR
B4 o (B EETAVE T B L T A
BRE(NE)  FUTKEERERR
BEMARTSHSBEENRARER
SR HERES RAMES
AFHER -

Internal credit rating Description Basis for recognising ECL
A EBIEERTAR Ei:pus BRANCFESERENEE
Strong The counterparty, as the department within the Lifetime ECL — not
government, has a low risk of default credit-impaired
X R HEF (ERBUTERFT) BE AR R R EERE-JFER
EAES
Good The counterparties, as listed companies with strong Lifetime ECL — not
financial background based on the published credit-impaired
financial information publicly available in the
market, credibility and good repayment record,
has a low risk of default
R1if RPHFVEREAEEMEE S (IRENTIS LR EHEEERE-FER
ASEE TIEMBER) - ERE R RIFERCEN BME
EHRR)HEORBRRE
Satisfactory The counterparties, having no balances past due over  Lifetime ECL — not
30 days or occasionally having certain balances credit-impaired
past due over 30 days and with good repayment
record, has moderate default risk
mE RHHF(WEAPBBIOANERAARE THEAE 2PRPEEFE-FEE
HAERB30 A HIE SRR R 47 ) V& AR fR AN BIE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit-
credit-impaired impaired
&8 BEREBERTABEECBLEEERE HEHEEER - EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
s BREBBRNEBABAREN BN BERERTRR MHERETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

18. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENTS OF TRADE 18. EZEWRERENEERE

RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS
(Continued)

In determining the ECL, the management of the Group has taken
into account the historical default experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, in estimating the probability of default of each of
the trade receivables and contract assets occurring within their
respective loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon
default in each case. The ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets are estimated individually.

The table below provides information about the exposure to
credit risk and ECL for trade receivables and contract assets

A (8)

BETEMEEEER  ASEEEED
ERR Y FHBER KR LB
o UHHEBFAMEEBENRERE
BAREMETENBEEERTAR
R E B B R FRRIAOR 7 @ 89 RT Al
EHRAE - UEFESRRFERAD
BESXANEMERBRFAERERR
BEBANARENE  UREBERATHE
WEK - BHRWFIEBREHEENTE
HEEERER &R -

TEREYERESERRRERENEE
NEERRLEHEEBENER @ %
EEBBER S -_=ZFR T -

which are assessed individually based on internal credit rating

as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 within lifetime ECL (not credit- —A=t+—HNZEBEREEEE(GEE
impaired): SR E) e R ERE B T AGETT 1 B FF
fl o
Average Gross carrying Impairment
Internal credit rating loss rate amount losses
R EBIEERTAR FHBERR fREAE HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZB-_=H=A=+—H
Strong 58 S 0.00% 6,842 -
Good R4f 0.51% 69,284 355
Satisfactory A 1.87% 13,829 258
89,955 613
As at 31 March 2022 R-B-_—H#=F=+—H
Strong G 0.04% 7,974 3
Good Ruf 0.56% 52,672 294
Satisfactory mE 2.41% 39,086 943
99,732 1,240
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18. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENTS OF TRADE

RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS
(Continued)

A trade receivable or contract asset is written off when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables
are over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. As at 31
March 2023, trade receivables and contract assets in a total of
HK$6,655,000 (2022: HK$6,655,000) which have been impaired is
subject to enforcement activities.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the year in assessing the
loss allowances for the trade receivables and contract assets. The
individual assessment is regularly reviewed by the management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about the specific
debtor is updated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

18. EZRWAERSNEERE

A (8)

WHBRERBERERAEBRENFR
g AWEEBWROAE @ FINEBA
EITBEBRKFIIHENRNA  EZEFHE
WREaBBEMT(UREREE A
) BHRBFIAEREHNEEBHEM
HeoM—E-_=F=A=1+—0" 28
B BIMEBUEITENREER 2 BUGIAR
AHEES £6,6550008 T (T ==
4 1 6,655,000/87T) °

RAEE  FHEZFREFEREDE
EEBRBERTENAT R ERR
RIEBH - @R ERAREEIER
EHIRE - NERBRSEESANE
BERD TEH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

18. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENTS OF TRADE 18. EZEBRERENEERE
RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS wFAL ()
(Continued)
The movement of the impairment losses in respect of trade RERN BERBESERWRIBERENEE
receivables and contract assets during the year is as follows: BREEEZESHT
Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired credit-impaired
2HRBEEER- 2HRMEEEE-
FEERE EERE
Trade Contract Trade Contract
receivables assets  receivables assets Total
EE) LE e BREE EZEURE BREE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRL TR TAT TRL

At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—§=A=+—H 294 1,109 - 833 2,236
Transfer to lifetime ECL - BR 22 NRHEEEE-

credit-impaired EERE - (193) - 193 -
Transfer from contractassetsto = HAKEEEKZEES

trade receivables FEU B 744 (744) - - -
Reversal of impairment losses 2 =F = —FJ17—H

related to trade receivables RNE B EUGIER

and contract assets recognised & 4B EMBRESE

at 1 April 2021 o (1,038) - - - (1,038)
New trade receivables and FNEERNITLE Z R

contract assets originated BRANEBE-ERAR

during the year — impairment EEE

losses recognised 379 689 3,294 3,168 7,530
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZ§=H=+—H 379 861 3,294 4194 8,728
Transfer from contractassetsto = HAXEEEKZES

trade receivables FEUIE 652 (652) - - -
Reversal of impairment losses ST —FH—H

related to trade receivables TR E S EUIER

and contract assets recognised & HIEERBNREESE

at 1 April 2022 B (1,031) - - - (1,031)
New trade receivables and FREEROIEE HRYGR

contract assets originated HRAKEE -CHERA

during the year - impairment EER

losses recognised 62 342 - - 404
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=6=A=+—H 62 551 3,294 4194 8,101
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

18. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENTS OF TRADE 18. ESEWRERENEERE
RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS AP ()
(Continued)
Changes in the impairment losses in respect of trade receivables BB SEWFIERENEENRER
and contract assets are mainly due to: BHREHEEHN
2023 2022
—EBC-=F —F-—F
Increase (decrease) Increase (decrease)
in lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL
2HRHBEE ZHITREEE
51838 i O 2 ) B moRd)
Not credit- Credit- Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired impaired impaired
FEERE FERE FEERE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET AT AT

Settlement in full of trade  BHEAEBEREEAEES
receivables with a gross 20,802,000/ 7T 49

carrying amount of g 5 rEWEIE

HK$20,802,000 (2022: —E-

HK$18,166,000) 18,166,000/ 7C) (1,031) - (1,031) -
Transfer of contract assets #§ 2 HITEHAZ EEEIE

in lifetime ECL — not EERENEGNEE

credit-impaired to credit- #EBE{EEREE

impaired = = (193) 193

New trade receivables BRI 4818 .4101,415,000
and contract assets with BITHETIE B SRR
gross carrying amount of  FKIBREHNEE
HK$101,415,000 (2022: —E-F
HK$99,094,000) 99,094,000/ 7T ) 404 - 1,068 6,462
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e

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZEZEZZT ==

19.

20.

R RS e

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

As at 31 March 2023, the pledged bank deposits of HK$3,000,000
(2022: HK$10,776,000), which carry interest rate at a range from
0.01% to 0.60% (2022: 0.01% to 0.60%) per annum, have been
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group
given by a bank (2022: to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group and surety bonds of an aggregate balance of
HK$7,102,000 given by banks) as disclosed in notes 22, 31 and 32.

Bank balances and cash represent cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less at an average interest rate of 0.66% (2022: 0.09%)
per annum as at 31 March 2023.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits and
bank balances are set out in note 29.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

F=RA=1t—HILFE

19. BIEARIT

/iﬁ'f n\l:l
RE

RIE-=F=A=+—H  #u=x
22~ 3T NM32FAHE - AFFENF0.01%
Z060%(—F -~ : 0.01%E0.60%)
T BB E | IFERTTIF23,000,00058 (=
T 4 1 10,776,00078 7T ) O /EIE IR
DERIBITRTFAEBMNRITHE(ZE
ToF  UERBAZSHEBRTETAER
RIERTTRLE R 4B £257,102,000/% JTHY
BHIRFES) -

BITHEBEBRSEAEEFANRE R
EEJH}% A=A TR ERITE
MR- =F#=A=1+—H8FY
FFIRE0.66%(—F =4 : 0.09%) °

EEMIRITERRIRITAERBEFEF
ICEANGE AR

20. BES R HA R RRIA

2023 2022
—ECZ=F B F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Trade payables B S ENFE 8,122 10,195
Retention payables ERE S 2,297 2,227
Provision for reinstatement cost 1B R A 750 750
Other payables H bR FRIB 108 -
Provision for an onerous contract —EAEBE KRB 272 -
Accrued expenses JEAR 2,157 2,225
13,706 15,397

Less: provision classified as W DBRAIEREE DA
non-current portion (750) (750)

Current portion of trade and other payables &5 Rk EbfEN FRIBH R ED

B 12,956 14,647

BHERERERRR / —E_ZFFR
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on

e IR IR DT -

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

20. ES R EMENSRIE )
NTARBREHRREXZAHNNE S

2023 2022
—EC=F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 8,010 8,891
31 to 60 days 31E60H 112 1,304
8,122 10,195
The credit period of trade payables is usually ranging from 0 to BEHORNRENGEEHBRENF0EI

30 days.

Trade payables are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the respective group entity is set out
below.

H e

EHRNARAEDAEASEERYES
BN EEHE - #HIIE -

2023 2022

—E_=F —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT T

Renminbi (“"RMB") AREB(TARE]) 72 1,456

Retention payables to subcontractors of contract works are
interest-free and payable by the Group after the completion of
maintenance period of the relevant contracts or in accordance
with the terms specified in the relevant contracts for a period
ranging from 1 to 2 years after completion of the relevant works
to the customers.

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 20.

The retention payables are to be settled at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

B REMENSFIE®G)
480 AR 4 R 45 1< A FE IR B2 51 B
—F :

2023 2022

—EB-=F —E_F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

On demand or within one year BRENRY—FRA 383 1,016
After one year — & 1,914 1,211
2,297 2,227
No movement of provision for reinstatement cost during PREEE RN - 18 R Ak 2N 18 4 1§ g

both years. The provision for reinstatement cost relates to the
estimated cost of work agreed to be carried out for handing
back the Group’s office premises in its original condition.
These amounts have not been discounted for the purposes of
measuring the provision for reinstatement cost as the effect is
insignificant.

B o R ER A BB R RIS A
B EER A S EMETH TR
HRABH - RESELmAH B
RABEETHR  RRABBREY
TEAX -

BHERERERRR / —E_ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

21. LEASE LIABILITIES

21. HESE

2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: HEBBERNATFEINERN :
— within one year ——FNRX 2,328 2,361
— more than one year but not exceeding ——F LA HEMFIAA
two years 2,446 2,371
— more than two years but not exceeding —MFLAHERFIAR
five years 1,173 3,292
5,947 8,024
Less: Amount due for settlement within o OmEN B EIE TIRE 128 A
12 months shown under WE|HER & FRIE
current liabilities (2,328) (2,361)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ JEREVAEE NFIIRM12@ A%
shown under non-current liabilities B EAER e FRIE 3,619 5,663
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to JERRIEE B &8 NiETIgE S E5RH

lease liabilities is 5.2% (2022: 4.7%).

As at 31 March 2023, the lease liabilities of HK$5,080,000 (2022:
HK$7,182,000) are secured by rental deposits with carrying values

EA52%(ZTF 1 47%) -

BOWEINE RZE_=F=A
=+—H ' HE&E5080,000/% T(=

of HK$728,000 (2022: HK$743,000) as set out in note 31. T4 :7,182,0008 ) MEREEA
728,000 7L(ZF = Z4F : 743,000% 7T )

HE RS IR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZEZEZZT ==

22.

R RS e

F=RA=1t—HILFE

BANK BORROWINGS

22. SRITER

2023 2022

—EC=F —E-F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

THET FHET
Variable-rate, secured and guaranteed bank 22 - BEB L EERRT
borrowings, repayable within one year and B AR —FRNERR

on demand clause* BIREREE G 28,788 21,009

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * FORRE ARG EPA AT EIE K HER -

loan agreements.

The above variable-rate bank borrowings as at 31 March 2023
bear interests ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 2.0% to 2.75% per annum (2022: HIBOR plus 1.8%
to 2.0% per annum).

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings is as follows:

MNRZEBE-_=F=A=+—08 " Lt/ 8
BITIERENTEEERTEERE(E
BRITRAEFRE]) M2.0%E2.75%HF
ME(ZEZZF : HABRITREREMN
1.8%ZE2.0%RFFIR)EHE »

AEEBROBERFNE(FFEREOF
R)BWELT -

2023
—E_=HE —E-F

BERERNE

FBIRITIER

Effective interest rates per annum:
Variable-rate bank borrowings

4.6%-7.7% 1.9%-2.7%

As at 31 March 2023, the pledged bank deposits of HK$3,000,000
(2022: HK$3,000,000) have been pledged to secure the banking
facilities granted to the Group as set out in notes 19 and 31.

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate carrying amount of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause amounted to
HK$28,788,000 (2022: HK$21,009,000).

B FF1ORIAE R =F=
A=+—8 ' 2 #MR7777 53,000,000
HEIT(ZZT = —4F : 3,000,000/ 7T) B 1
TR AERAEBEERMNIRITRIE ©

RZZ_=F=A=+—H HHERE
RERGTRORTEFINRELER
28,788,000/ L ( ZF = =4 : 21,009,000
/EE)

BHERERERRR / —E_ZFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE=ZZT—=—=

F=RA=1t—HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 23, EEMIEEE
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and T?\%%@WE’\EWE@: HEBREFIEE
movements thereon during the year: ERHE
Loss Loss
allowances  allowances Decelerated
Tax for trade  for contract tax
losses  receivables assets depreciation Total
g5 EWE BRRNEE HE
BEEE BERE BERE AR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET AT THET
As at 1 April 2021 RZFZ-FEA—R - 48 183 147 378
Credited (charged) to profit PEERTAIRR)
or loss 3,819 15 @1) 109 3,902
As at 31 March 2022 RZE-—#F=A=1+—H 3,819 63 142 256 4,280
(Charged) credited to profit REE (R A
or loss - (53) 51 1M 7
As at 31 March 2023 RZEZ=#=A=+—H 3819 10 21 367 4,287

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$30,099,000 (2022: HK$23,148,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$23,148,000 (2022: HK$23,148,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses of HK$6,951,000 (2022: Nil) due to the

unpredictability of future profits streams.

24. SHARE CAPITAL

/’%7‘5) EZE
= — —

R-E-_=F=ZA=+—8 K&EET7A
HEHE R K ENORBBHEEEER
30,099,000/ 70( =& = —4F : 23,148,000
E54823,148,000% 7T (—
T~ —4F : 23,148,000/ 7T ) HERIE LT
HEE - AR & FRREETEA

B LR T IR & 186,951,000/ 7T (=

T F  E)WER

24. E'EZIK

ERETRIAEE -

The share capital as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 represented the MNIB_=FR_FB__F=A=+—
share capital of the Company. HEVRAIE AR R BRIARA o
Shown in
consolidated
Number of financial
shares Amount  statements as
KA 8%
RBEE &8 BT PN
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each BRR.01ETH LR
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March RZZE-_—4$pmA—AH"
2022 and 31 March 2023 T F=-A=t—HK
—T-=%=A=t—H 10,000,000,000 100,000,000 N/ATNE
Issued and paid: BETRERE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March RZZE-_—FWHA—H "
2022 and 31 March 2023 “TEoF=A=1— &
“E-=F=ZA=+— 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 20,000
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

(a)

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees but subject
to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per month for each
employee to the scheme.

The total contributions to the MPF scheme charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are set out in notes 9 and 10.

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has the obligation to pay
Long Service Payment (“LSP"”) to qualifying employees in
Hong Kong upon retirement, subject to a minimum of 5
years employment period, based on the following formula:
Last monthly wages (before termination of employment) X
2/3 X Years of service.

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while the
amount of LSP shall not exceed HK$390,000. This obligation
is accounted for as a post-employment defined benefit
plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group's mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any
positive/negative returns thereof (collectively, the “Eligible
Offset Amount”), for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable
to an employee (the "Offsetting Arrangement”). The LSP
obligation, if any, is presented on a net basis.

The Employment & Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
was gazetted on 17 June 2022, which will eventually abolish
the Offsetting Arrangement. The Amendment will come
into effect prospectively from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date"”). Under the amended Ordinance, the Eligible Offset
Amount after the Transition Date can only be applied to
offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but no longer
eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation.
Furthermore, the LSP obligations before the Transition
Date will be grandfathered and calculated based on the
Last monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition
Date.

The Group's LSP obligation, taking into consideration the
Offsetting Arrangement, is considered to be insignificant as
at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

25. EIKREFEHE

(a)

AEBAFBEEAERREENA
BIEEFTE - ZATEIMBEERAE
EMEEDH  ABELALE
MESHE - AEEKEBHIERE
A B HS%ARZAT SR - BmET
BB R ATZEES A1,500
BT e

RiraBEa MEMEm R E RN
RSB TE 2 5T B R BB N M EE9
10 e

R AR I 1R 15 1) ) (& B A 1) 56 57
B)  AEEEEBERKERR
BERNEBREBEXNEHRE
(IREERBE])  ZEHAEDRHS
FoERUTANGFE  RE—E
AR TE (K ILERAT) < 2/3 < iR#
FH -

=% — 8 A TE& LR A22500%5
T MEBREESETSEA
390,000/ 7T © #ZEIS1ERBERE &
FERFEFIEIALR -

S - — AN TR B R oR
REEFEEIDAFASERHA
AEBRGIMERES MK - 0
L/ REEFIE " BEF(RES
[EEREHERE])  AEBEENT
BENRARG S ([EHRHE] -
EHRBEER (NF) LFET
R ©

(ZE = —FEREERAREVED
(HHL ) ERDHREDER=F
T ZEXRABTLEBRTE  &E&H
RIS - ZELERKH-F
“HFERA-A(TBEBAH MM
R RBIERT RG] - KR
HIR AR IKHRRE R L AN K 3
BEAHINERARBEES - B
THAEREHEBRARROEY
RIS SR © Leoh - BR BB Al
HMRBRG S EHAREBEE A M
ZHMRE—EATENE -

EZBIEBELE  AEER_F
—=F=ZA=t+—HER-ZE_—
—A=t+—HBzERHRESEBEH®
RAELTEK -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to provide incentives or rewards to participants of the

share option scheme including the directors of the Company

and eligible employees of the Group, the shareholders of the

Company passed an ordinary resolution at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 5 March 2020 to approve
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”). No share options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption on 5 March 2020. The major
terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an

incentive or a reward to participants for their contribution

to the Group.

Eligibility

Eligible participants include employees (any full-time or

part-time employees, including executive directors and

independent non-executive directors) and advisers and

consultants of the Group.

Maximum number of shares

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The Company may not grant any options if the
number of shares exceeds 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and other schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue as of
the listing date, 15 April 2020 (“Listing Date”). On the
basis of 2,000,000,000 shares in issue on the Listing
Date, the scheme mandate limit will be equivalent to
200,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares in
issue as of the Listing Date.

Subject to the approval of shareholders in general
meeting, the Company may refresh the scheme
mandate limit to the extent that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and other schemes under the scheme
mandate limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as of the date of such shareholders’
approval.
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(c) RONZSEE
() DB BBTEHEHT
B EI30% » RIA R R TMEE
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Period of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.

Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to a participant under the
Share Option Scheme and other share option schemes
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Where any further grant of
options to a participant (the “Further Grant”) would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes to such
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the Further Grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the shares in issue from time to time, the Further
Grant must be separately approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting with such participant and
his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if the participant is
a connected person) abstaining from voting.

In relation to the Further Grant, the Company must send a
circular to the shareholders and the circular must disclose
the identity of the relevant participant, the number and
the terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant under the Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes) and
the information required under the Listing Rules. The
number and terms (including the exercise price) of options
to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
Company'’s shareholders’ approval and the date of meeting
of the board of directors of the Company for proposing
the Further Grant should be taken as the offer date for the
purpose of calculating the exercise price.

26. BRI RERHElI (@)

(d)

(e)

FE R RERT BV AR
BRERT B L AR + 5
HAFE A M AR

BT @ B A £ 3% HH B8 A RE Y
2E LR
FMEM1218 A BARS - RIR KB AR A
AT E| M B IR B 2 E A R
HRBERE(RESITERKITE
B ETEME BT ARG T
TR B - TESHBBTRE
TN E1% o (A 2 EEFEINE
FERRAE ([ BEIMRE ) 5B 504 1218
AHEMEZBENMNEL BB (BEZ
) ARZERET S R E MR
EFBRAEL2EERE R TR
HETABRE(RIEETE - B
R RCRITEBRE) ETEmME
BOIRBTHITAORGD - ARBB
Tﬁe%ﬁ%@m%’%%%&ﬁ
WEEARNBBRERBRERE LR
THOE  EE2EEREETHE
AEER ETRA) (HEBEA
(EEREMRA) - WEBESES
BREANL) NERERE -

PEIMREME - ARRBAREK
REIRK - MBRVBAREEAR
SEENG D - B TREBEREZ
H B RAGHE (R AR RIS IR AT
EIREMERETS R EHESEE
Bz ERE) LR EmRAR
EZER - mABR2EEBTRD
Z BB RAER(BIETTEE)
FER AR R RILE 2 BIFEE - M
BRREZFINFHOEARREZESS
SHEAMTHETEERNEREREA
BB -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 26. FERESTEI(9)

(f) Payment on acceptance of the option
HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the share option offer. The share option offer
will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days from
the date on which the offer is granted.

(g) Subscription price for shares
The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the board of directors of the Company
at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares; and

(i)  the average closing price of the shares for the five
consecutive business days immediately preceding the
offer date.

(h) The remaining life of the share option
7 years (expiring on 14 April 2030).

No options were granted, lapsed or exercised during the current
year and no share options were outstanding as at 31 March 2023
and 2022.

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following related party transactions:

The remuneration of key management personnel, including
executive directors of the Company and other key executives of

(f)

(9)

(h)

BB RN
EFEAREZREREZQRARA
RAEMVET - BEREZOAR
B 24 A HEF 28R A A T A
" -

REBEE

RIBREBEST SR W E AR ER
PR BB D RB (B R AR A
EFEEENER  EEREAR
TIMERNRSE

() BEmE: &
(i) BOREEZHE R AE
BEEEANFHETHE -

BIRAEAVERT F 1
TE(R-_Z=FF0NA+MmAZ
H) e

MEBBRENAFERD « K17
B MEERER-ZF_=Z2FK=-F
T oFZA=F+—BHERITE-

BEE RS
REAHBEREL MBS BBENZ IR
RSN - REEIE(T T AT TR S ¢

TEEEAB(BRARRMITESERA
SEEME RITHA 8 ) RAFZ 80 H B

the Group, during the year is as follows: wm
2023 2022
—EC-=HF - S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Short-term employee benefits iR B2 A 7,967 9,589
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINE R B 122 145
8,089 9,734

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined
by the management of the Group having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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28.

29.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes lease liabilities and bank borrowings, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the raising of net debts or the repayment of the
existing debts.

28

. BEXERERE

FEEEEHES  HBRENTRS
SR AG - RIEEE BB AT R
MR BAREDR - AREELF
AR AR R T o

AEBOERRBEBREERFHE - 25t
BHERBERRITESR  HIKRERE
TEHEEYVRARRHEEARGED (21
RAEMBRRAEENCD BITRA R
)

AEEEERBTHRTERNRRE - A%
BMEBEARALEBEEANERNEA
% WEBMNIE ~ BITHBRO AR
SEREHFRAEERFEH FEHER
BARRE -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. €@MT A
Categories of financial instruments LRI AER
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BB EA AT RN SR EE 69,442 78,681
Financial liabilities cRmER
Amortised cost BEHRE A 39,315 33,431
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, refundable rental deposits, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (including
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk,
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities is HK$, the currency
in which most of the transactions are denominated. The carrying
amounts of the foreign currency denominated monetary liabilities
of the group entity at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in note 20.

The management of the Group considers that the currency
risk of those monetary liabilities is not significant to the Group.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in exchange rate
of RMB against HK$. The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in respective functional
currency (i.e. HK$) against the relevant foreign currency (i.e. RMB).
10% is the sensitivity rate used which represents the Group's
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in a foreign exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 10% change
in a foreign currency rate. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in post-tax loss where HK$ strengthens 10% against
RMB. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against RMB, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the
amount below would be negative.

29. ERMTHE®)
HEEREEREREEE)
A ()

EHmpR ()

AEEFEEAT AR KB THEERR
FEK -  TRALANEERZSENIEE
(S T) KAABEINE (BIARE) A
BEREEI10%NEEE - 10%2ARER
AEEEREHERTREHEAEE L
R EAEKE LR - JREEDTER
BARBIINETEERIEE - RERR
10%ERESBFAEEME o TUMIESEK
TRATTHARBIEI0%E - KRR
B o BT H AREEZE10% » AIBREL
BEBBEREESERBNZE UK
TXHEEEAEas -

2023 2022
—E-=F o F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
RMB against HK$ AREHBT 6 122
Interest rate risk Fi %z %
The cash flow interest rate risk relate primarily to the Group's RenfERBRFEEZ@ANARE &

variable-rate bank borrowings which were linked to HIBOR and
bank balances at the prevailing market deposit rate. The Group
is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to the
Group's fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and lease liabilities.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

B EE S
IRITRI I BAMAR)Z BIRITE R RIR
WITM IS ERFEET BEMRITERS - K
SENTHBEBAASEE S DEFIRTT
GREEEEEMNRAFENERR - A
EEBATWEMNERERKE - AW 0 A
%‘E@Eﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂfﬂ ST B
EEEPEAFERER
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The management of the Group consider the Group's exposure of
bank balances to interest rate is not significant as interest bearing
bank balances are within short maturity period. The Group’s
sensitivity to interest rate risk had been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowings
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis was prepared
assuming amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. The Group's sensitivity to
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period while all other
variables were held constant is as follows:

29. ERMTHE®)
HEEREEREREEE)
A ()

FIE @R ()

AEBERERS  AEBERITHEBR

Eﬁuuﬁﬁﬂfﬂ e PEAN - FARFRR
TTRERBIB AR - AEEF R AR
@i@@a*ﬁ?ﬁ#i&iﬁﬂﬂimx; BIRTTE
R EREBMEE - ZOIHREN &
iﬁﬁﬁiﬂi@?ﬁ%ﬁﬁi\ii’ﬂifaﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
o NATAHMAI B ERERFTENIE

M o RSB R & B R B T R RS 8
REEANT

2023 2022
—EC=HF B
Reasonably possible change in interest rate ~ FIR & IR R gEEE) 50 50
basis points basis points
EEZER fE A B,
2023 2022
—EC=HF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
(Increase) decrease in post-tax loss for the FAKRHEEEGSM) R
year
— as a result of increase in interest rate —BRFE LA (120) (88)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate —BRFETEE 120 88
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERBETE
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause AEERXZHFRERTEEEMS

a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €M I B

\§\ %

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers and
contract assets

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has concentration of credit
risk on trade receivables as 78% (2022: 68%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer and 82%
(2022: 94%) of the total trade receivables were due from the
Group's five largest customers.

The management of the Group has made periodic individual
assessment on recoverability of trade receivables and contract
assets based on historical settlement records and adjusted for
forward-looking information. In determining the lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and contract assets, the management of the
Group has taken into account the historical default experience
and forward-looking information, as appropriate. Details of the
impairment assessment on trade receivables and contract assets
are set out in note 18.

The directors of the Company manages the credit risk of trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers and contract
assets by closely monitoring the instalment settlement prior to
dates close to each agreed settlement dates, and obtaining
the credit-related information about the customers. Before
the end of the reporting period, through continuous dialogue
with the customers, the Group has been informed the delay
in payments for certain instalments due in the coming twelve
months. Therefore, the Group recognised an impairment loss
of HK$7,488,000 (2022: HK$7,488,000) in respect of the balances
of trade receivables and retention receivables due from the
customers as at 31 March 2023.

MEREREEREREEE)

FERBRERETGEE)
EEGHREHNEEELNE ZENR
F
R-ZB-=F=A=+—H0 BHEIK
RIALARERT78%( T~ —4F : 68%) AJE
WAEEFAEFPHIE - UEESER
FIBRBEERE2% (T & : 94%) A fE
WAREERAREFHIE Bt AEER
B S RBGEEERBRES -

ANEBEEBENBESE LTS
TEBFEE S ERFERENEED
UYL E M R s ATHE M A RETT IR - 3
BIRUFIEREGNEERE T2 HES
EEEBER  ANEBTEENRBAEE
WS RATEEER (WERB) - E5E
WHBRENEENREFGHHBIR
Bi3E18 ©

ARRESEREROSHELE HH
ZEIEYEE S BN RERIEN - Wk
BEBEFNEEHEBER  BREP
BHEENEHRBFEURGHNEE
RiEERRE - EREHR - BREE
FPETHEHS  AEBECEERRK
+TZEANEMNETOBENREELE
BeEilt "EENR-_TE-_=ZF=A
— T —HRERZEEFNE ZELK
TE & FEWIR B & W) 4 R RE SRR E B 18
7,488,000/ 7T( — & — —4F : 7,488,000/
JT) °
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers and
contract assets (Continued)

The delay in payment is caused by the significant change in the
Hong Kong market resulting in a significant financial difficulty
faced by the customer and therefore, the trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers and contract assets is regarded as
default. Therefore, ECL is measured on a lifetime credit-impaired
basis. The measurement of ECL of trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers and contract assets is determined
based on the expectation of cash flows to be recovered from
the customer. In this process, the management has taken into
account quantitative and qualitative information that are specific
to the customer, including macroeconomic factors which are
relevant to the customer’s operations that could significantly
affect the customer’s ability to fulfill its repayment obligations.

Other receivables
Details of the impairment assessment on other receivables
(including refundable rental deposits) are set out in note 16.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

The management of the Group considers the bank balances that
are deposited with financial institutions with high credit rating to
be low credit risk financial assets. The management of the Group
considers the probability of default is negligible and accordingly,
no loss allowance is recognised.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management of the Group to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity and the management of the Group monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure compliance with loan
covenants. The Group’s management believes that the Group
will have sufficient working capital for its future operational
requirement.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity date for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent

29. €M I B

MEREREEREREEE)

REBEEEK(E)
TRAMKEEFTESHRAEBRTSE
HWEBBER - TRRMEBMBERKER
RERE EE*ETFZKE@TAK;AH'T/\
WEFEHPEL - ABME - MEKRE
*Eﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁk%i%&
W PwmiRITRE AR EEITREAE
Mo HtIETESRBENIHRBIMA
BENERDARE - TREFMER
AERERE - WHERERZE + K
AR SR RIR B MEAROFNE -

that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

More than
Weighted  On demand 3 months Total
average  orlessthan but less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months Tyear  1-5years  cash flows amount
nETYy  BRERS  BB=fA KEB
MZE SRR IR —ER% REREBAR REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
% THT THT TAT TAT TAL
Non-derivative financial liabilities #1744 ®EE

At 31 March 2023 R-EB_=F=A=t+-H
Trade and other payables BARHMENTE N/ATEH 8,315 298 1914 10,527 10,527
Bank borrowings RITER 5.1 28,788 = = 28,788 28,788
Lease liabilities BEAE 5.2 643 1,929 3,776 6,348 5947
37,746 2,227 5,690 45,663 45,262

Non-derivative financial liabilities #f74¢RE%E

At 31 March 2022 R-B-—F=A=t-H
Trade and other payables BHREMERTE N/AREF 10,631 580 1211 12422 12422
Bank borrowings RITHER 22 21,009 - - 21,009 21,009
Lease liabilities HERE 47 676 2,000 5966 8,642 8,024
32,316 2,580 7177 42,073 41,455
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2023, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$28,788,000 (2022: HK$21,009,000). Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the management of the Group
does not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
management of the Group believes that such bank borrowings
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the management of
the Group reviews the expected cash flow information of the
Group's variable-rate bank borrowings as at 31 March 2023 and
2022 based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

29. €M I B

HEREREEREREEE)
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RE - MNR-FE_=F=A=+—H0 %
—ﬁifﬂ%?ﬂEI’JEEE%@TERZSJS&OOO/%E

(ZZ = —4F : 21,009,00087C) - EEZR
AEENT BRI  AEEEEEREA
RITETHFERERENNBERZKAER
MG K  AEEERERE %5
RITEFEREERBEAHETER
BHEAEE -

AEERBESRAR  AEEERER

REZRBZEHBEERBHEMR
EER T _=ZFR_F-_—_F=A
T+ —HREZEEBRITEREHEERE

agreements as set out in the table below: BEL - BRAESIR TR
Weighted Total Total
average Less than 3 months undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1month  1-3 months to1year  cash flows amount

AR
mEFERE  AR-BR -ZE=@A Z@AZ-F RERELE | BEAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% i TEn TEn TEn TEn
Variable-rate bank borrowings  FERTER

As at 31 March 2023 WZE-=f=zf=1-H 5.1 6,332 16,654 6,021 29,007 28,788
As at 31 March 2022 RZB-_F=R=+-H 22 8,217 9,649 3,193 2119 21,009

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
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30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from or used in financing activities.

MEEBMELREIHR

TRINFEAREEDFELARS
BH(LERERARLED) - BET
B ELEHARSNEERARICR
SHERRAEBEARSHERRE

RBERPMBIMARSRENALE -

Accrued
Bank Leases interest  Dividend
borrowings liabilities  expenses payable Total
fest

RITEN  HERE AEEX  EARE EH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—FMA—AH 4,889 10,098 21 - 15,008
Financing cash flows MERERE 16,120 (2,718) (326) (20,000) (6,924)
Dividends recognised HERBD AR E
as distribution - - - 20,000 20,000
Interest expenses FIBAX - 423 306 - 729
Recognition of new leases RIEE - 221 - - 221
At 31 March 2022 RZE-—#F=A=1+—H 21,009 8,024 1 - 29,034
Financing cash flows RERERE 7,779 (2,603) (942) - 4,234
Interest expenses FEEY - 332 979 - 1,311
Recognition of new leases RIHE - 268 - - 268
Early termination of a lease contract 1RAIARIHHEAH - 74) - - (74)
At 31 March 2023 RZE-_=%=A=1+—H 28,788 5,947 38 - 34,773
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31.

32.

R RS E

F=RA=1t—HILFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, the pledged bank deposits of HK$3,000,000
(2022: HK$10,776,000) have been pledged to secure the banking
facilities granted to the Group given by a bank (2022: to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group and surety bonds of an
aggregate balance of HK$7,102,000 given by banks) as disclosed
in notes 19, 22 and 32.

As at 31 March 2023, the lease liabilities of HK$5,080,000 (2022:
HK$7,182,000) are secured by rental deposits with carrying values
of HK$728,000 (2022: HK$743,000) as set out in note 21.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2023, surety bonds of an aggregate balance of
HK$17,829,000 (2022: HK$7,102,000) were given by a financial
institution in favour of the Group's customers as security for the
performance and observance of the Group's obligations under
the construction contracts entered into between the Group
and the customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory
performance to the customers to whom the performance
guarantees have been given, such customers may demand the
financial institution to pay to them the sum or sum stipulated
in such demand. The Group will become liable to compensate
such financial institution accordingly. The performance
guarantees will be released upon completion of the contract
works. The performance guarantees were granted under letters
of guarantees of the Group and were not secured by any of the
Group's pledged bank deposits (2022: secured by the Group's
pledged bank deposits of HK$7,776,000) as at 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company provided a guarantee (the
“Parent Company Guarantee”) for the performance of all
obligations and liabilities of a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Sub-Contract Subsidiary”) under a construction
contract (the “Sub-Contract”) entered into between the Sub-
Contract Subsidiary and the contractor (the “Main Contractor”) of
the Sub-Contract. The maximum liability of the Company under
the Parent Company Guarantee shall be limited to HK$22,830,000
(2022: HK$22,830,000), which is approximately 10.0% of the
contract sum of the Sub-Contract. The Parent Company
Guarantee will be released upon the date of completion stated
in the certificate of completion in accordance with the main
contract signed between the Main Contractor and the employer
of the Main Contractor.

The management of the Group does not consider it is probable

that a claim will be made against the Group in respect of the
above performance guarantees.

LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

31.

32.

BEEKH
RNRZZT_=F=A=+—8 - #Huk=
19 - 2R 32FAHFTE - BEBRITHER
3,000,000 7L ( = Z = =4 : 10,776,000
BIT)DIEEM - AERBRITETAEE
RIRITRLE (Z2 = —F : UIERAZMH
BITRTAEBMBITHERELHA
7,102,000/ B ARES) °

UK 21T E c R—E-_=ZF=A
=+—H8  HEA&E5,080,000% t(=
T4 17,182,000/ 7T ) LABRE B A
728,000/ 70 ( == = —£F : 743,000%7T)
WA SRS EEF o

BAER
RZZE-_ZFZA=Z+—H  «KE
UASRBERFASZSABLHESEE
17,829,000 7L (= ZF = =4 : 7,102,000
BIL)NBHORE (EAREEETR
B AEBEEFIVWEELSHNET
EAEMER - WASBEREREREL
EROBFEHSARENBLHRR -
AlEERFAERZemEEnEEx
NEBESHEIZERRENEEE - A%
EiSgAEHZemERIELRERE
WEMF - BHOERBERAHNIREENE
Bk  c RZE_=F=FA=+—8 -
BHERDIBEAEBMNERRTL -
I m AR E BT B EFRITFER(Z
T _F UAEEBEBETER
7,776,000/ 7T ) fE IR o

RZE-_=F=ZA=+—H  ARAR
BARANEZENBAR([2EHWE R
B ]) B A ([ 48R RE ) FT LM
(2R DRETYEME AR
MABRTRABERHEER(TBARE
R - ARBERARERBETHRS
B (BB $722,830,000/ T ( ZF = =4 -
22,830,000/&7C) - BIDBEHNEHT
R#10.0% ° B AR ERFRBEAZR
HAEAERRIRZENIAONERIE
ARE R AR IR T A HIR AR

AEBEEEBRS  AREAKARES
B ER B ER MR HRIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 33. TEHFRERS
During the year ended 31 March 2023, right-of-use assets with BHE_Z_=F=-"A=+—HILFE "
a total capital value of HK$268,000 (2022: HK$221,000), with the EHERENRER268,0008TT(ZF ==
corresponding amount of lease liabilities of HK$268,000 (2022: F 221,000 7T )EREAE - HEHR
HK$221,000) were recognised. EBELTA2680008 L (ZE-__F:

221,000 7T) °

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. AR TBH BT
THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—E-=F —E_F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Non-current assets EMBNEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HENBARREE 1 1
Amount due from a subsidiary JE W — IRt /& A RIsKIE 28,000 28,000
28,001 28,001

Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E b U IR 262 1,572
Amount due from a subsidiary FEW —EIR B A Bl Rk e 72,102 73,084
Bank balances and cash IRTTHESHRNIRE 262 272
72,626 74,928
Current liabilities REEE

Other payables H b fERFIE 102 83
Amount due to a subsidiary FE — MY & R I8 1 1
103 84
Net current assets MEVEEFE 72,523 74,844
Net assets BEFE 100,524 102,845

Capital and reserves BARK R
Share capital (note 24) R A (B3E24) 20,000 20,000
Reserves ] 80,524 82,845
Total equity R ARTE 100,524 102,845
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. KD TR R TR @)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company's reserves: RARIEEES
Share Retained
premium profits Total
R4 E1E R EE A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THETT T
At 1 April 2021 RZE-_—FWMNA—H 79,219 26,600 105,819
Loss and total comprehensive — FREE & 2 M S 425
expense for the year - (2,974) (2,974)
Dividends recognised as HRAD RARE (FFFE12)
distribution (note 12) - (20,000) (20,000)
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=A=+—H 79,219 3,626 82,845
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE K2 HH AT
expense for the year - (2,321) (2,321)
At 31 March 2023 R-T-_=F=A=+—H 79.219 1,305 80,524

182 LOTUS HORIZON HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HIFE

35. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. B A RFE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 and RIEBZ=FRZZF__F=A=+—
2022 are as follows: B ARRRMERAFENT
Place and Issued and
date of Place of fully paid Equity interests
Name of subsidiaries incorporation operation share capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities
WELARER AMEEERAS SEnH ERTRARRE rEEEERE IERRED
2023 2022
—E-CE “E-CF
% %
Directly held:
EEKA:
Plateau Star Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100 100 Investment holding
3May 2018
Plateau Star Limited EBRBRES E 1007 RERR
—Z-/\#R A=A
Indirectly held:
AR
ICGL Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 Design, supply and installation
4 May 2007 services of facade works and
building metal finishing works
hRER &R i 10,000,000/ 7T HMETRREESBHE LROR
“ZTLFRAMA it HRRRER
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the REER  BEMB AR BITEM
end of the reporting period. BBES °
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Financial Summary

MBHE

The financial summary of the Group for the last five financial years, ZA%ERBEE A EH KT E M E (FHk
as extracted from those published audited consolidated financial B#ZEE A MMLEEFEZLE A W HHREK AR T
statements and the prospectus of the Company dated 30 March 2020 HEIA-ZT-_TF=H=+HMARKREIE( B

(the “Prospectus”), is set forth below. BRER|))SHHNWOT
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEXE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—Bo=f T T —T-FF —T—HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT T FAT F#T

Revenue Was 190,621 223,991 220,788 243453 202,786
Gross profit EF 12,819 2,473 50,373 70,958 61,784
(Loss)/profit before taxation  FrFELAT(EIE), & F (8,109) (26,600) 25,954 43,398 44,996
Income tax credit (expense)  FTSHIE R (FX) 7 3,944 (4,218) (9,240) (8,506)
(Loss)/profit and total FR(ER), B &

comprehensive (expense) 2 (AX) RSB

income for the year (8,102) (22,656) 21,736 34,158 36,490

AL
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HeEERARE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

“Ro=F R F —F-—F —F-FF —FTNF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR THET TAET THET TAET

Total assets BmEE 171,845 175,688 210,244 125,029 104,144

Total liabilities meE 49,384 45,125 37,025 62,765 76,038

Total equity e 122,461 130,563 173,219 62,264 28,106

Notes: &L -

1. The summary of the consolidated results and financial position of the Group for the 1. FEERZE-Z-NF=A=T—BHIFENGEHE
year ended 31 March 2019 is extracted from the Prospectus. BRI E TR E RRERE -

2. The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial 2. PR ES MMER S E RS W RERN — D
statements.
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